
 
 

 

 
 
 
DYDD GWENER, 13 IONAWR 2023 
 
 
AT: HOLL AELODAU Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL 
IFANC A'R GYMRAEG 
 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A'R GYMRAEG A 
GYNHELIR YN Y SIAMBR - NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN.  
SA31 1JP AC O BELL AM 10.00 YB AR DYDD LLUN, 23AIN 
IONAWR, 2023 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR 
AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 
 
 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Julie Owens 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224088 
E-Bost: juowens@sirgar.gov.uk 
Cyfarfod aml-leoliad yw hwn.  Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol 
yn y lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar 
wahân. 
 
Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:- 
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A'R GYMRAEG 
 

 
 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU-  7 Aelod 
 

1.  Cyng. Carys Jones  
2.  Cyng. Liam Bowen  
3.  Cyng. Kim Broom  
4.  Cyng.  Llinos Mai Davies  
5.  Cyng. Peter Hughes Griffiths  
6.  Cyng. Betsan Jones  
7.  Cyng. Jean Lewis  

 
GRŴP LLAFUR -  4 Aelod 
1.  Cyng.  Lewis Davies  
2.  Cyng. Dot Jones  
3.  Cyng. Edward Skinner  
4.  Cyng. Michael Thomas   

 
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL -  1 Aelod 
1.  Cyng. Sue Allen  

 
HEB GYSYLLTIAD  1 Aelod 
1.  Cyng. Sean Rees  
 
AELOD AU ANETHOLEDIG SYDD Ȃ PHLEIDLAIS -  2 
 

 Vera Kenny Yr Eglwys Gatholig Rufeini 
 Rev. Delyth Richards Yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 

 
RHIANT LYWODRAETHWYR SYDD Ȃ PHLEIDLAIS -  3 
 

 Deborah Elias Cynrychiolwr Rhiant Lywodraethwr - 
Ardal 1 - Dinefwr 

 Anthony Enoch Cynrychiolwr Rhiant Lywodraethwr - 
Ardal 2 - Caerfyrddin 

 Felicity Healey-Benson Cynrychiolwr Rhiant Lywodraethwr - 
Ardal 3 - Llanelli 

 
 



 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS 

UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I 
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA.  

 

 
3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 

LAW)  
 

 
4. CWRICWLWM I GYMRU A CHYMORTH A DDARPERIR I 

YSGOLION  
5 - 18 

 
5. YMGYNGHORI YNGHYLCH STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB 

REFENIW 2023/24 TAN 2025/26  
19 - 58 

 
6. EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU  59 - 64 
 
7. DIWEDDARIAD AR GAMAU GWEITHREDU Y PWYLLGOR 

CRAFFU  
65 - 70 

 
8. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL  71 - 98 
 
9. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 

GYNHALIWYD AR 01 RHAGFYR 2022  
99 - 104 

 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A’R 
GYMRAEG 

23 IONAWR 2023 

Yr Aelod o'r Cabinet sy'n gyfrifol am y portffolio:-  
Cyng. Glynog Davies, Addysg a’r Gymraeg   
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Addysg a Phlant 
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Aneirin Thomas 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Elin Forsyth 
 
 
 
 

Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Addysg a Chynhwysiant 
 
Arweinydd strategol ar gyfer 
effeithiolrwdd ysgolion 
 
 
 

Rhifau ffôn: / Cyfeiriadau 
E-bost: 
 
 
01267 246645 
ARThomas@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
07584004000 
EMForsyth@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

  

CWRICWLWM I GYMRU A CHYMORTH A DDARPERIR I 
YSGOLION 

Y Pwrpas: 
 
I rhoi trosolwg i’r pwyllgor craffu o’r cymorth sydd ar gael i ysgolion i weithredu’r Cwricwlwm i 
Gymru.  Noder byd cefnogaeth yn cael ei darparu gan y rahanbarth Partneriaeth, yn ogystal 
â’r adran Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant (ECS). 
 
Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor Craffu: 
 
I ystyried canfyddiadau’r adroddiad a chyfeiriad strategol y rhanbarth a’r adran wrth symud 
ymlaen. 

Y Rhesymau:  
• Yn dilyn cais am wybodaeth gan y pwyllgor craffu. 
• Yn dilyn pryderon a godwyd ynghylch ymgysylltiad ysgolion â darpariaeth ranbarthol ac 

effaith cymorth cwricwlwm ar ddatblygiad ysgolion. 
 

Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud 
penderfyniad:  Nac Oes. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4

mailto:ARThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:EMForsyth@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH 
LANGUAGE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

23 JANUARY 2023 
 

THE CURRICULUM FOR WALES AND SUPPORT PROVIDED FOR 
SCHOOLS  

This report is written in response to a request for information from the ECS Scrutiny committee. 
 
The aim is to briefly provide the current context regarding schools’ implementation of the 
Curriculum for Wales, focussing predominantly on the support that is available for schools. 
 
The report also aims to outline some of the challenges regarding curriculum implementation 
and the key focus areas for this academic year, sharing some of the actions in place. 
 
Discussions regarding the delivery of curriculum support and related matters will inform future 
actions. 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 6



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 
AWARE/CONSULTED  
Yes 

 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:            Elin Forsyth     Strategic Lead for School Effectiveness 

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
None 
 

NONE 
 

YES 

 
None 
 

Yes 
 

 YES 
 

NONE 
 

 
Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
We will need to ensure that all schools are well supported in implementing the Curriculum for 
Wales and that all leaners, irrespective of need, achieve good progress in line with the four 
purposes of the curriculum. 
 
 
Finance 
We need to ensure that all funding ensures high quality support for curriculum development 
and value for money at all times. 
 
Risk Management Issues  
Failure to support schools effectively in implementing the new curriculum for Wales will lead to 
a lack of suitable progress for learners in their skills and knowledge development. Learning 
environments and experiences need to be fit for purpose, authentic and effectively equipping 
our children and young people for their futures. 
 
 
Staffing Implications 
Consideration may be needed regarding staff deployment in relation to any updated strategies 
relating to the local authority and to the region to ensure effective use of financial resources. 
 

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

Craffu ar Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant- 
Cefnogaeth Cwricwlwm i Ysgolion
Education and Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Curriculum Support for Schools

23.1.2023

Tudalen 9



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting the Implementation of the Curriculum for Wales 
in Carmarthenshire Schools, Settings and PRUs  
 

 
 
 

Context: 
➢ Curriculum Implementation for Primary schools – September 2022 
➢ Curriculum Implementation for Secondary schools – September 2022 or 2023. 

Carmarthenshire Secondary schools have opted for 2023. 
➢ The Curriculum for Wales contains a range of complex mandatory elements 

for schools to address when designing their curriculum. See below. 
➢ Schools note how challenging a task this is, with time capacity and expertise 

noted as some of the key challenges. There is much positive work being 
developed across the schools within Carmarthenshire, however this is 
variable across schools. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 10



 

 

Mandatory Elements of the Curriculum for Wales:  
: :  
  

Four purposes  
Ambitious, capable learners  Enterprising, creative 

contributors  
Ethically, informed 

citizens  
Healthy, confident individuals  

   
Developing a shared understanding of progression  

The principles of progression and the descriptions of learning are intended to guide the development of a curriculum 
which reflects appropriate progression  

Principles of progression  
Increasing effectiveness  Increase breadth 

and depth of 
knowledge  

Deepening 
understanding, 

ideas and 
disciplines  

Refinement and growing 
sophistication  

Making connections and 
transferring learning  

   
Assessing for the future   

Assessment has three main roles in the process of enabling learner progression  
Supporting individual learners on a day to 

day basis  
Identifying, capturing and reflecting 
on individual learner progress over 

time  

Understanding group progress  

   
Principles of curriculum design  

Evidence-based  Authentic  Responsive  Inclusive  Ambitious  
Unified  Empowering  Engaging  Based on subsidiarity  Manageable  

   
Areas of Learning and Experience (AoLEs)  

The 27 statements of what matters are the basis of learners progression throughout CfW and its 3-16 learning continuum  
Descriptions of learning provide guidance on how learners should progress within each statement of what matters as they 

journey through the continuum of learning  
Expressive arts  Health and well-being  Humanities  

Includes 
Religion, 

values and 
ethics (RVE)  

Languages, literacy 
and communication  

Mathematics and 
numeracy  

Science and 
technology  

   
Cross-curricular skills  Integral skills  Cross-cutting themes  

Literacy  Numeracy  Digital 
competence  

Personal 
effectiveness  
Creativity and 

innovation  
Planning and 
organising  

Critical 
thinking and 

problem 
solving  

Relationships 
and sexuality 

education 
(RSE)  

Human 
Rights  

Diversity  Careers and 
work-related 
experiences  

Local, national 
and 

international 
contexts  

   
Pedagogical Principles  

  
 
 
 

Tudalen 11



 

 

 
 
The Partneriaeth Business Plan  
 
Vision 
 
Partneriaeth Mission Statement  
Partnership working to achieve excellence for all. 
 
Our Aims 
 
 1) We lead schools and settings to design, develop and deliver a curriculum with 
equity and excellence at its core. 
 2) We support schools and settings to become ambitious, self-improving learning 
organisations.  
3) We provide professional learning and opportunities for collaboration in order to 
develop strong and supportive partnerships. 
 
Strategic Objectives: 
 
Priority 1– Curriculum & Assessment - Supporting a national curriculum with equity & 
excellence at its core that sets high standards for all learners 
 
Priority 2– Developing a high-quality education profession - improving the teaching & 
learning in our schools 
 
Priority 3 – Leadership and Career Pathways - supporting inspirational leaders 
working collaboratively to raise standards. Includes future leadership & professional 
networks  
 
Priority 4– Strong & inclusive schools committed to excellence, equity & well-being  
 
Priority 5– Supporting a self-improving system - supporting a system in which the 
education profession have the skills, capacity & agency to continually learn & 
improve their practice   
 
Priority 6– Ensure that Partneriaeth has strong governance and effective business 
and operational support that provides value for money 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 12



 

 

Partneriaeth Business Plan: 
 
Priority 1 – Curriculum & Assessment - Supporting a national curriculum with 
equity & excellence at its core that sets high standards for all learners 
 
SSA: Cressy Morgan  
 
1.Curriculum & Assessment Reform 
2.Curriculum reform professional learning programme (Curriculum Design and 
Development + New PL for curriculum) 
 
a.To develop the capacity of schools to engage in curriculum reform through a 
flexible, implemented programme of targeted interventions. 
b.To continue to support the national PL programme for Curriculum for Wales.  
c.To continue to provide asynchronous CfW support for middle leaders and teachers. 
d.To support schools with the collaborative development of shared understandings 
on curriculum and assessment in line with Curriculum for Wales guidance. 
e.To continue to support schools in progression conversations. 
f.To continue to support schools in their reform journey from curriculum vision to 
design and implementation. 
g.To ensure high-quality collaboration within Partneriaeth and with partners in the 
middle-tier.  
h.To deliver bespoke support for schools with furthest to go on reform journey.  
i.To support and facilitate local and national engagement through a range of focused 
networks.  
j.To develop and deliver a range of support for current qualifications and the 
Qualified for the Future agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 13



 

 

The Partneriaeth Professional Learning offer 
 
Cynnig Dysgu Proffesiynol 2022/23 (partneriaeth.cymru) 
 
Partneriaeth strives to deliver a consistent school improvement service, focused on 
challenge and support strategies that improve teaching and learning in classrooms 
and lead to improved pupil attainment and progress in all schools. 
 
Our aim is to build school capacity through support, challenge and intervention so 
that schools become self-improving, resilient organisations.  We facilitate school led 
support and intervention programmes at a peer to peer, department to department 
and school to school level according to the area of need that has been identified 
within the school. 
 
The region will build school capacity through continuing support, challenge and 
intervention to become self-improving, resilient organisations which continually 
improve outcomes for learners.  This regional strategy for a self-improving system is 
well underway and is firmly founded in the principles of school-to-school 
improvement. 
 
Partneriaeth is committed to the Welsh Language and its prosperity, and the 
language is an integral part of all the administrative procedures of the organisation. 
We consider Welsh to be a central element of the identity of the region, and we will 
continue to do as much as we can to promote the language and its use.   
 
 
The Professional Learning offer focuses on: 
 
➢ The Curriculum of Wales 
➢ Cross Curricular Skills 
➢ Pedagogy 
➢ National Leadership Development Programmes 
➢ Equity and Wellbeing 
➢ Cymraeg Mewn Addysg 
➢ Secondary Subject Support 
➢ Induction for Newly Qualified Teachers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14

https://www.partneriaeth.cymru/en/collection/cynnig-dysgu-proffesiynol-2022-23


 

 

The Carmarthenshire ECS Department School Improvement Strategy works 
alongside schools reflecting on the progress achieved by pupils as a result of the 
school’s curriculum provision. 
This aligns to the Welsh Government Guidance for School Improvement. 
 
Focus areas include: 
 

1. Are learners progressing in the ways described in the principles of 
progression, supporting them to develop towards the four purposes? 
 

2. Is the pace of learners’ progress in line with the expectations of teachers and 
the curriculum? 
 

3. Improving pupils’ progression by ensuring their learning is supported by a 
range of knowledge, skills, and experience 
 

4. Reducing the impact of poverty on learners’ progression and attainment 
 
The Carmarthenshire Professional Learning offer for schools focuses on: 
 
➢ The development of Maths and Numeracy skills,  
➢ Language Literacy and Communication skills in Welsh and English 
➢ Digital skills 
➢ The Curriculum for Wales 
➢ Inclusion and Additional Learning needs 
➢ Progression and assessment 
➢ Equity 
➢ Family and community engagement 
➢ Positive behaviour management 
➢ Progression in RSE 
➢ Early Years foundation learning 
➢ Leadership and Governance 
➢ Cymraeg 
➢ And so forth 

 
Please log into your HWB site so that you can access these platforms. We will 
navigate these during the Scrutiny meeting. 
 
Professional learning CCC - PORTH  
PobCwrs - AllCourses (google.com) 
 
Professional Learning Resources – Sharing effective practice across and between 
schools. GOOGLESITE  
Adnoddau Resources (google.com) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 15

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/hyfforddiantysgolion/pobcwrs-allcourses
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/adnoddau-resources/home


 

 

 
 
Challenges / Areas for development: 
 
➢ Headteacher Survey notes that schools are not receiving the support for 

curriculum development that they need. 2021 2022 
➢ Uptake of Carmarthenshire schools in the Partneriaeth professional learning 

offer is low. Possibly 4 / 5 / 6 schools attending a training session. Anecdotally 
some schools note that they value the progression workshops delivered by 
Partneriaeth, for example. However, the number of schools participating is 
low. Our maximum capacity for each event is 10 schools. 

➢ Input from schools, notes that further support is required in the following 
areas: 
Curriculum Design - Understanding of the mandatory elements and organising 
planning effectively. 
Cross Curricular skill development – Literacy, numeracy and digital  
Assessment and progression – what does this look like?  
What do standards look like in relation to each AOLE? 
Understanding and implementation of learning opportunities in relation to the 
integral skills  
Understanding of the cross-cutting themes.  

 
 
Next Steps: 

 
The Carmarthenshire ECS departmental Curriculum strategy focuses on the 
following priority areas during 2022 2023: 
 
➢ Sharing key national messages in a timely manner.  
➢ Curriculum Design - mandatory elements in particular 
➢ Cross-curricular Skill progression 
➢ Cluster working  
➢ Transition  
➢ Assessment and progression (within each AOLE)  
➢ Professional learning  

 
Actions include: 
 

Timeline  Focus area  What will we have achieved during this time?  
Sept to Dec 2022  1. Implementation of 

the Curriculum for 
Wales – September 
2022 for Primary 
schools and optional 
for secondary schools, 
2022 or 2023.  
2. Update School 
Improvement strategy 
in line with the WG 
guidance. Key focus 

1.The Partneriaeth PL offer will support the 
implementation of the curriculum.  
2. The SCIMP strategy will be based on a 
combination of the Estyn Framework, The School 
Improvement guidance and the principles of 
progression. Pupil progress in school will increasingly 
be monitored in the context of the curriculum for 
Wales.  

Tudalen 16



 

 

on Literacy, Numeracy 
and digital skills.  
  
  

Jan to April 2023  1. Understanding of 
the mandatory 
elements (EF)  
2. Cluster Working 
(EG)  
3. Curriculum Design 
(EF)  
4. Transition (AL)  
5.Assessment and 
progression - Shared 
understanding of 
progression (within 
each AOLE)     (MO 
HAJ)  
6.Professional learning 
(CLJ)  
7. Ensure that the 
SCIMP team invest 
time in familiarising 
themselves with their 
lead AOLE, followed 
by expectations in 
relation to cross 
cutting and integral 
skills.  
  

1. Joint planning (Carmarthenshire and Partneriaeth) 
for the AOLE delivery to ensure that schools have a 
practical understanding of the Mandatory elements of 
the curriculum. See diagram below for reference.   
2. The Cluster Working strategy will ensure there is a 
standardised approach across all clusters.  
3. Partneriaeth will deliver PL on curriculum design 
that meets the needs of schools. A Carmarthenshire 
‘Sharing event’ (6.2.2023) will launch the Curriculum 
and Evaluation platform and we will have more 
strategic methods to share effective practice in 
relation to Curriculum design.  
4. Transition Plan will be launched. Resources 
developed. Cluster to complete the transition plan.  
5. We will have developed a strategy to bring schools 
together to share pupil progress, across a cluster.  
 
6. Partneriaeth and CCC PL offer will be aligned 
avoiding duplication and ensuring that PL meets the 
needs of schools. Professional learning in relation to 
pupil skill progression continues on a bespoke basis, 
via networks and training sessions. 
  

April to July 2023  1.  Cluster Working 
Strategy.  
2.  Professional 
learning offer   
3.  Monitoring pupil 
progression  
4.  SCIMP strategy,   
5.  ESAs deployment.  
6. Sharing effective 
practice  

1. Cluster Working Strategy will be refined ensuring 
consistency of progress across all clusters. We will 
have a robust understanding of grant expenditure 
across clusters. Sharing effective practice will 
become more routine.  
2.  PL offer from Partneriaeth and CCC will be aligned 
for 2023 2024, addressing the areas for development 
for our schools robustly.  
3. We will be prepared for monitoring pupil 
progression in line with the curriculum mandatory 
elements, AOLEs, cross cutting themes, cross 
curricular and integral skills. Team development 
programme in place. Strategic monitoring plan 
drafted.  
4. Revised SCIMP strategy, addressing the principles 
of progression and the contributory factors.  
5. Consider how ESAs are deployed form September 
onwards. Should this now be on a cluster basis?  
6. A short, medium and long-term strategy is in place 
in relation to sharing effective practice.  

Tudalen 17



 

 

In addition, we need to: 
 
➢ Ensure efficient use of all financial resources in relation to Curriculum 

development, impacting positively on staff development and pupil progress at 
all times. 

➢ Ensure that strategy and professional learning meets the needs of schools 
effectively. 

➢ Strengthen strategies to ensure that messages regarding curriculum design 
and delivery, emanating from Welsh government or cross regional meetings, 
are shared with LA officers in a timely manner. Messages are currently not 
influencing school improvement strategy and approaches quickly enough. 

➢ CCC delivered an AOLE developmental session on the Expressive Arts to 
schools, September 2022, to explore approaches. 42 schools attended. 
Feedback was very positive. As a result, in the Spring term 2023, CCC 
officers, supported by Partneriaeth officers, will delivery AOLE support for 
schools. 1 session per AOLE. We aim to translate the theory into practice, in 
line with school requests.  

➢ Strengthen the facilitation of sharing effective practice to inspire innovation 
between teachers and leaders, securing pupil progression, wellbeing and 
enjoyment in their learning. 

 
 
How will we know that our curriculum support for schools is successful?  
➢ Pupils will be achieving good progress in relation to their starting points and 

teachers’ expectations across all mandatory areas of the curriculum. This will 
be reflected in ESA reports following support visit to schools.  

➢ There is a shared understanding of progression across the cluster.  
➢ Schools will have developed a purpose led curriculum which supports them to 

realise their vision. Schools will be able to exemplify and communicate their 
curriculum development journey.  

➢ Our schools’ curriculum is inclusive of all and enables all to develop in line 
with the four purposes of the curriculum.  

➢ Teaching is of a high standard across all schools and aligns to the 12 
pedagogical principles.  

➢ Assessment informs the planning of teaching and learning experiences, 
routinely.  

➢ Pupils are fully engaged in their learning and contribute towards curriculum 
design effectively.   

 
 
The Education Support Advisers evaluate progress and impact routinely 
alongside our schools. 
Our professional learning offer is amended as a result. 
Our strategy will be further updated for September 2023 ensuring that there is a 
rigorous focus on the principles of progression as well as the Welsh Government’s 
School Improvement guidance and Estyn framework. 
 

Tudalen 18



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG,  
POBL IFANC A’R GYMRAEG 

IONAWR 2023 
 

YMGYNGHORI YNGHYLCH STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB 
REFENIW 2023/24 TAN 2025/26 

Atodiad A - Strategaeth ar gyfer y Gyllideb Gorfforaethol o 2023/24 tan 2025/26 
Atodiad A (i) - Crynodeb effeithlonrwydd sy'n ymwneud â’r Adran Addysg a Phlant 
Atodiad A (ii) – Crynodeb Twf Gwasgedd sy'n ymwneud â’r Adran Addysg a Phlant 
Atodiad B – Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb sy'n ymwneud â’r Adran Addysg a Phlant  
Atodiad C - Crynhoad o'r Taliadau sy'n ymwneud â’r Adran Addysg a Phlant 

 
Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

• ystyried a rhoi sylwadau ar gynlluniau strategaeth y gyllideb  
• ystyried a rhoi sylwadau ar gynlluniau ar gyfer arbedion effeithlonrwydd yn eu 

meysydd gwasanaeth hwy, a glustnodir yn Atodiad A(i) 
• cyflwyno unrhyw gynlluniau eraill ar gyfer arbedion effeithlonrwydd 
• edrych yn fanwl ar y Gyllidebau Adrannol 
• cymeradwyo'r Crynhoadau o'r Taliadau 

 
Y Rhesymau: 
Yn ei gyfarfod ar 9fed Ionawr 2023, bydd y Cabinet wedi ystyried Strategaeth y Gyllideb 
Refeniw o 2023/24 tan 2025/26 (Atodiad A) ac yn cymeradwyo'r adroddiad at ddibenion 
ymgynghori. Yn y cyfarfod caiff y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ei rhoi ar lafar ynghylch 
unrhyw newidiadau neu gynlluniau penodol gan y Cabinet, os bydd hynny'n briodol. 
 

 
Aelodau’r Cabinet Sy’n Gyfrifol Am Y Portffolio:  
• Cyng. Glynog Davies (Addysg a’r Gymraeg) 
• Cyng. Alun Lenny (Adnoddau) 
 

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol 
  
Enw’r Cyfarwyddwr: 
Chris Moore 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Randal Hemingway 
 

Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol 
 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 

Rhif Ffôn / Cyfeiriad E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224120 
CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
01267 224886  
RHemingway@sirgar.gov.uk  

  

Tudalen 19

Eitem Rhif  5

mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

23rd JANUARY 2023 
 

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 
2023/24 to 2025/26  

 
The objective of the report is to allow members to consider the corporate budget 
strategy for the financial years 2023/24 to 2025/26 to consider the service delivery 
impact and options for the forthcoming years. 
The report is set out as follows: 
Appendix A 
• The attached report is a copy of the Revenue Budget Strategy 2023/24 to 2025/26 

that has been presented to the Cabinet. As part of the budget consultation process 
the report is presented to this Scrutiny Committee for your consideration.  
 

• The report provides members with an initial view of the revenue budget issues for the 
forthcoming year and also reflects departmental submissions.  

 
Appendix B 
Current budget extracts for Education and Children Department. 
 
Appendix C 
Charging Digest for the Education and Children Department. The charges for 2023/24 
have yet to be adopted and any change to the proposed charges will impact on the 
budget/efficiency proposals. 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 20



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Chris Moore  

 
Director of Corporate Services 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
YES  
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
1. Policy and Crime & Disorder   
The budget is being prepared having regard to the Improvement Plan. 
3. Finance   
The report provides an initial view of the Budget Strategy for 2023/24, together with 
indicative figures for the 2024/25 and 2025/26 financial years. The impact on 
departmental spending will be dependent upon the final settlement from Welsh 
Government and the resultant final Budget adopted by County Council. 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS AWARE/CONSULTED? 
YES 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2023/24 3 year 
Revenue Budget 

 
Corporate Services Department, County Hall, Carmarthen 

 

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



DETAILED REPORT  

 1 

 
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

Education, Young People & the Welsh Language Scrutiny Committee 
   

23rd January 2023 
 

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2025/26 
(Copy of Cabinet report 09/01/2023) 

DIRECTOR & DESIGNATION 
 
C Moore, Director of Corporate Services 

DIRECTORATE 
 
Corporate 
Services 

TELEPHONE NO. 
 
01267 224121 

AUTHOR & DESIGNATION  
 
R Hemingway, Head of Financial Services 

DIRECTORATE 
 
Corporate 
Services 

TELEPHONE NO 
 
01267 224886 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Cabinet in October 2022 received a report on the Revenue Budget 
Outlook for 2023/24 to 2025/26 which appraised Members of the 
financial outlook and the proposals for taking forward the budget 
preparation. 

1.2. This report provides Members with the current view of the Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 together with indicative figures for the 2024/25 and 
2025/26 financial years. The report is based on officers’ projections of 
spending requirements and takes account of the provisional settlement 
issued by Welsh Government on 14th December 2022.  

1.3. Whilst significant work has already been undertaken in preparing the 
budget, this represents an initial position statement which will be 
updated over the coming months as the budget is further developed, 
council members are engaged and public consultation takes place. The 
final settlement is due to be received from Welsh Government on 7th   
March 2023. 

1.4. The report is broken down into six parts: 
 
• Funding Projections/Provisional Settlement 
• Budget Requirement 
• Impact on the Authority’s budget requirement 
• Consultation 
• Conclusion  
• Recommendations    

Tudalen 23



DETAILED REPORT  

 2 

 

2. FUNDING PROJECTIONS/PROVISIONAL SETTLEMENT  

2.1. The provisional settlement was announced on Wednesday 14th 
December 2022. Provisional figures for individual Local Authorities were 
provided for 2023/24, with indicative figures for 2024/25.  

2.2. The Westminster Autumn Statement announced in November 2022 
included a significant Barnett consequential for Welsh Government, 
reported at £1.2 billion over two years. This was primarily made up of 
increased funding for Education, Health and Social Care, and changes 
to business rates, all of which are devolved functions.  

2.3. The main points of the Provisional Settlement 2023/24 on an all Wales 
basis are as follows: 

2.3.1. Local government revenue funding for 2023/24 set at 
£5.514 billion, an increase of 8.0% (£403 million) 
compared to 2022/23. Like for like, the increase is 7.9% on 
an all-Wales basis.  

2.3.2. The minister’s letter accompanying the settlement 
highlights that the increase includes funding to meet the 
Foundation Living Wage, as well as passporting the 
Education consequential form the UK Autumn Statement.  

2.3.3. Whilst this is welcome, the inflationary pressures far 
exceed the funding provided. In particular, no additional 
funding has been provided to meet the inherent budget 
shortfall going forward as a result of the 2022 pay awards. 

2.3.4. There is no funding floor, meaning a wide variation 
between individual Local Authorities, ranging from +9.3% 
(Monmouthshire) to +6.5% (Blaenau Gwent). These 
variances are driven by updates to key datasets which 
influence the funding allocation, such as the number of 
Universal Claimants and Free School Meal Pupils in 
particular areas.  

 

2.4. The Settlement figures for Carmarthenshire are: 

2.4.1. After adjustments for WG identified transfers, the increase 
in the provisional settlement is 8.5% (£26.432 million). The 
Aggregate External Finance (AEF) therefore increases to 
£338.017 million in 2023/24.  

This settlement is significantly above the indicative figure of a 3.4% 
increase and provides some £15.5m more than our original assumption, 
however Welsh Government themselves recognise that even this 
increased figure will not be enough to meet inflationary pressures 
facing councils and difficult decisions will need to be made. The 

Tudalen 24



DETAILED REPORT  

 3 

level of inflationary cost increases is on a scale not seen for several 
decades, as discussed in detail later in this report.  

We have set our Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) assumptions for 
2023 and beyond to accommodate an easing of inflation versus current 
rates. Whilst the Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecasts a sharp 
reduction in CPI over the next 12 months – we have followed this 
pattern, albeit at a higher level – this is because the OBR forecast 
includes in particular the impact of energy and food costs, which our 
budget accommodates as separate cost pressures. A key assumption 
is that across our workforce, pay awards track the prevailing inflation 
rate over the medium term. The financial model forecasts a requirement 
for £20m savings over the three year MTFP period.  

Details of the many Welsh Government Service Specific Grants were 
provided alongside the provisional settlement on 14 December 2022 at 
an all-Wales level. For 2023/24, as has been standard over several 
years, most remain at a broadly similar level (cash value) to previous 
years, which will in reality reduce outputs. With the level of general 
inflation as well as pay awards at a much higher level, the impact of this 
next year will be significant.  

2.5. There are however some important updates to specific grants: 

- There is new funding of £40m all-Wales to provide continued support 
to Ukrainians seeking refuge in Wales. This funding will be critical to 
migitate any unfunded pressure on Local Authority budgets, meaning 
that the £1m pressure recognised in the October report can now be 
released. 

- WG has provided additional £5.5m funding to flatline the Recruit 
Recover Retain Standards (RRRS), instead of the planned 
reduction. This will enable schools to continue catchup/recovery 
activities.  

- The Additional Learning Needs Transformation grant has nearly 
doubled from £6.6 million to £12 million across Wales. This increase 
is estimated to to contibute c. £300k-400k to Carmarthenshire. 

- The Pupil Development Grant has been increased by a reported £9m 
across Wales, which is estimated at c. £500k-600k to 
Carmarthenshire 

As with last year, there are a number of grant changes referred to in the 
text to the main WG budget narrative, for which the values do not appear 
to be reflected in the Local Government provisional grant tables – it is 
assumed that they are due to be updated for the final settlement.  

3. BUDGET REQUIREMENT 2023/24 

3.1. Current Years performance (2022/23) 

Tudalen 25



DETAILED REPORT  

 4 

3.1.1. As the Authority’s core spending requirement remains 
constant year on year, a review of current year’s 
performance is important in identifying whether there are 
any underlying problems within the base budget 

3.1.2. The current projection for the Revenue Outturn for 2022/23 
(based on the October 2022 monitoring) is as follows 

 

Service
Approved

Budget
Total

Expenditure
Forecast

Variance
Forecast 
For Year

£'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 17,218 16,687 -531
Communities 119,589 122,223 2,634
Corporate Services 29,116 28,235 -881
Education and Children's Services 187,394 191,091 3,697
Environment 65,784 65,709 -75
Departmental Expenditure 419,101 423,945 4,844

Unfunded Pay offers 6,300 6,300

Corporate contingency 3,000 200 -2,800

Capital Charges -17,694 -20,194 -2,500
Levies and Contributions 11,479 11,477 -2
Transfer to/ from Reserves 0 -2,370 -2,370
Net Expenditure 415,885 419,358 3,473  

The main reasons for the departmental variances are as follows:  

o Chief Executive’s Department: underspends on member pay 
and travelling, registrars and vacant posts across the 
department, offset by People Management overspends  

o Education and Children’s Services: Significant overspends in 
children’s services due to increased demand and agency 
costs, overspends in ALN budgets and School Meals Service, 
offset by additional grants in Early Years non-maintained 
provision.  

o Communities Department: underspends in Older Peoples and 
Physical Disabilities budgets are offset by overspends in 
Learning Disabilities and Mental Health divisions. 
Additionally, Leisure income levels have been gradually 
returning to pre-pandemic levels, however this creates an in-
year overspend. It should also be noted that without the 
sectoral staffing shortages in social care, the overspend could 
be significantly higher. 

Tudalen 26



DETAILED REPORT  

 5 

o Corporate Services: there are underspends on pre-Local 
Government Reorganisation pension costs, and Council Tax 
Reduction, partially offset by an overspend in Rent 
Allowances. 

o Environment Department: Overspends in waste services, 
school transport and reduced car park usage post-pandemic, 
offset by vacant posts and reduced property maintenance 
activity due to contractor capacity.  

At this point the Authority is currently forecasting an overspend of 
£3.5 million which will need to be met from general balances. It 
is imperative that the structural pay issue causing this is 
dealt with in next year’s budget as this is not a sustainable 
financial position.  

3.2. Validation 

3.2.1. Validation reflects the changes in expenditure 
requirements to deliver the current level of services in future 
years. Primarily this is inflation, but also includes some service 
specific changes. Some areas of inflation are currently at rates 
that have not been seen in decades and present risks to our 
budget. The key validation factors are as follows: 

2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Original Proposed

General inflation - Expenditure 3.0% 5.0% 3.0% 2.0%
General inflation - Fees & Charges 2.5% 10.0% 3.0% 2.0%
Electricity & Gas 5.0% £9.5m -10.0% 0.0%
Fuel 5.0% 50.0% 3.0% 5.0%
Pay Inflation - non teaching 2.5% 5.0% 3.0% 2.5%
Pay Inflation - Teaching 2.5% 5.0% 3.0% 2.5%
NI increase nil -1.25% nil nil
Levies (see para 3.2.9) 2.5% 13.0% 3.0% 2.0%
Pension Contributions nil -1.8% nil nil
Capital Charges £500k £500k £500k £500k

  
 

3.2.2. With the exception of pay, the largest change to the 
council’s budget is the sharp increase in energy and fuel costs. 
As with large parts of the public sector, our gas and electricity 
needs are procured by Crown Commercial Services, who 
aggregate their client’s requirements to secure prices in the year 
ahead. Whilst this paid handsome dividends for our 2022/23 
energy needs, the wholesale energy market has been at 
unprecedented levels, largely driven by the war in Ukraine.  
Carmarthenshire has set a two year purchasing strategy, with 
around three quarters of our energy needs already secured for 
2023/24 and half for 2024/25. Based on the latest figures from 
Crown Commercial Services, we will need to add £9.5m to energy 

Tudalen 27



DETAILED REPORT  

 6 

budgets for 2023/24, however there is expected to be a 10% 
reduction for 2024/25 which is built into our calculations.  

3.2.3. The cost of Road Transport Fuel has also increased 
rapidly over the last year. This affects both the council’s own fleet, 
for which a 50% price increase has been added to budgets, as 
well as third party run services such as school transport, for which 
an explicit budget pressure is included within Appendix B.  
     

3.2.4. The Council’s 2022/23 budget was set on the basis of a 
4% pay award for both NJC staff (the largest share of our payroll 
by value and staff numbers) and Teachers. Against this: 

3.2.5. The NJC award has been agreed at a flat value of £1,925 
across all grades, which equates to a 7.1% increase when 
applied to our workforce. The unbudgeted 3.1% “catchup” must 
be built into the budget calculations for 2023/24 

3.2.6. The independent pay review body’s recommendation of a 
5% increase for all Teachers has been accepted by Welsh 
Government, but at this point Unions are balloting for strike 
action, demanding an uplift to 12%. Our draft budget includes the 
1% “catchup” to 5%, with a recognition that any extra above this 
would be unfunded and represent an explicit significant risk. 
Every 1% is worth approximately £1m.    
 

3.2.7. The previous MTFP planning assumptions include future 
annual pay awards of 2.5% for all staff. This was updated to 5% 
for 2023/24 in the budget outlook paper to reflect the higher 
inflation combined with the level of industrial action across both 
the public and private sector currently. Looking beyond this, the 
picture is highly uncertain, therefore our assumption is that pay 
growth mirrors inflation.  

 
The impact of nationally set pay awards adds c. £19m to the 
estimated budget requirement for 2023/24, and a total of 
£33m over the 3 year planning period. 

 
 

3.2.8. Against these extraordinary increases, we are able to 
offset three separate cost savings which partially mitigate the 
scale of the increase required:  

 

• Within the Autumn Statement, the Chancellor confirmed the 
removal of the Health and Social Care Levy. As the 2022-23 
allowed for an increase of £2m across council employed staff 

Tudalen 28



DETAILED REPORT  

 7 

and a further £500k for commissioned care, these can now be 
reversed.  

• Staffing budgets have historically been set at the “top of 
payscales” – this means for individual jobs, the budget provides 
for the maximum pay point an individual employee could reach 
in that role. Whilst prudent budgeting, this leads naturally to an 
inherent underspend due to normal levels of staff turnover, 
internal promotions etc. By budgeting more precisely according 
to the exact makeup of the current workforce, we are able to 
reduce staffing budgets by an estimated £2.5m. This would 
apply to all departments, with the exception of delegated school 
budgets, as they are governed by the fair funding formula. 

• Strong investment returns and prudent stewardship of the Dyfed 
Pension Fund over many years has resulted in a funding 
surplus, confirmed by the fund’s independent actuaries following 
the most recent Triennial valuation of the Dyfed Pension Fund 
which has been carried out over the last year. As a 
consequence, Carmarthenshire is able to reduce our Employers 
contribution rate by 1.8%, which provides a saving of £2.8m. 
The final valuation results will be notified to Carmarthenshire 
before the end of the Financial Year.  

These three measures, taken together, are worth nearly £8m, 
and without which, the budget reductions requirement 
and/or council tax increase would have been considerably 
more challenging.  
 

3.2.9. We understand from the Fire Authority that their indicative 
budget assumed a levy increase of 13%. Since this was agreed, 
Welsh Government has indicated that Fire Authorities will be 
required to meet the ongoing annual costs of the emergency 
service network, the share of which we estimate and anticipate 
will add £150k to Carmarthenshire and is shown in the pressures 
appendix for reference. This is yet to be confirmed by the Fire 
Authority in a formal meeting.   

3.2.10. As a result of these factors, validation adds over £30 
million to the current year’s budget. 

3.3. Cost Reduction Programme 

In anticipation of the settlement challenges, significant work to 
review service efficiencies/rationalisation proposals has been 
undertaken.  

3.3.1. The savings targets set for each financial year are as 
follows: 

Tudalen 29



DETAILED REPORT  

 8 

 2023/24 
£m 

2024/25 
£m 

2025/26 
£m 

Original target – MTFP 
(March 2022) 
 

3.839 5.333 n/a 

Budget Outlook (October 
2022) 

18.800 n/a n/a 

Proposed Savings 
(following Provisional 
Settlement and other 
budget adjustments) 

9.377 6.448 4.531 

3.3.2. Accordingly, departments have developed a range of 
proposals, and these efficiencies are included in Appendix A of 
this report. 

• The efficiency proposals are categorised as follows: 
Managerial – Efficiencies that result in no perceivable 
change to the overall level of service delivery.  
Policy – Efficiency or service rationalisation proposals 
that will directly affect service delivery. 

 2023/24 
£m 

2024/25 
£m 

2025/26 
£m 

Managerial 6.136 3.641 2.755 
Existing Policy 0 0.200 0.952 
New Policy 3.241 0.543 0.289 
Total  9.377 4.384 3.996 

(Detail at Appendix A) 

.  

3.3.3. More work will need to be undertaken to further develop 
these efficiencies.  

  

Tudalen 30



DETAILED REPORT  

 9 

3.4. New Expenditure Pressures and contingency 

3.4.1. New expenditure pressures are the combinations of 
additional cost to meet existing service needs e.g. increased 
client base/greater service take up and the costs of meeting 
change in service provision e.g. policy changes.   

3.4.2. The original budget outlook report included £5.5 million per 
annum to meet growth pressures. 

As with recent years, a much higher value of initial growth bids 
were received from departments, totalling £17 million. Based on 
an evaluation of the value and unavoidable nature of pressures 
submitted as well as additional funding identified through grants 
as explained in paragraph 2.5 above. Initial indications that many 
of the submissions are genuinely unavoidable and have already 
been constrained where practical. At this stage in the budget 
development, and pending further analysis to be undertaken by 
Directors, an indicative sum of £12 million been allocated across 
departments (Appendix B).  

This budget round, social care pressures in particular have been 
at a very high level: 

o the Foundation Living Wage, which impacts commissioned 
social care delivery, has been increased to £10.90, a 10% 
uplift.  

o As well as demographic growth pressures for older people’s 
budgets, this year’s bid recognises the demographic increase 
in adults living with learning disabilities, which has seen a 
significant overspend in the current year.  

o There are significant and unavoidable increases to energy 
and food costs incurred by residential care providers. 

Last year’s budget provided part year increased funding to 
support changes to the waste collection methodology – required 
to achieve increasingly challenging statutory Welsh Government 
recycling targets. This budget completes this with a further £0.8m, 
which will also contribute towards the decarbonisation agenda.  

The Education and Childrens department bids include areas of 
acute overspend in the current year such as ALN and Inclusion 
services, and pressures on children’s services.  

3.4.3 In total, pressures funding adds £12 million to the budget, 
including an unallocated sum of £250k. The detail is provided at 
Appendix B. 

3.4.4 Last year’s budget included an explicit contingency budget of 
£3.5 m, of which £0.5m was ringfenced for social care. This was 

Tudalen 31



DETAILED REPORT  

 10 

to meet increased costs or lost income following the cessation of 
the WG hardship scheme which came to an end in March 2022.  

Of the £3m corporate contingency, £200k has been allocated to 
school transport costs, with additional allocations likely to be 
needed to cover a range of budgetary issues such as sustained 
reduction in car park usage and PPE purchase and storage. As 
this requirement is much lower than what was feared, and given 
the scale of the budget gap, it is proposed that £1.5m can be 
released.  

 

3.5. Schools Delegated Budgets  

3.5.1 Over recent years, our MTFP has provided in full for known 
pressures to school budgets including inflationary costs and pay 
awards, without requiring any budget reduction proposals. 
School balances have also benefitted from additional grant 
funding provided by Welsh Government, with aggregate 
balances in March 2022 totalling £15.2m.   

In 2022/23 delegated school budgets represent more than 30% 
of the authority’s net revenue budget. Given the scale of the 
financial challenge this year, it is impossible to maintain this 
protection without significantly impacting other council services. 
This budget therefore includes a £2.7m saving applied, which is 
consistent with the level of savings required of other areas of 
council services.  

 Members should also note that as outlined in paragraph 2.5 
above, there are increases to the RRRS grant (which was not 
expected to continue at the same level), ALN and PDG grants. 
These will all help to support education funding over the year 
ahead.  

Immediately following the provisional settlement publication, 
there were calls to ensure that the additional Education Barnett 
consequential funding was indeed spent on Education. This draft 
budget meets and exceeds that expectation. 

    

3.6. Internal Funding 

3.6.1. Generally speaking, whilst the use of reserves to support 
annual budgets should not be summarily discounted, it must be 
treated with caution. Funding on-going expenditure from such 
funds merely defers and compounds difficult financial problems 
to the following year. One-off items of expenditure within any 
budget proposal lend themselves better for such funding support. 

Tudalen 32



DETAILED REPORT  

 11 

3.6.2. In deliberating this point however, members must bear in 
mind any inherent risks that may be built into the budget 
strategy. These include: 

- Cash-flat grants next year with reductions in 
2024/25, which inevitably will either reduce outputs, 
or increase pressure on core departmental budgets 

- Teachers 2022 Pay Award – as this is currently not 
agreed by Unions 

- 2023 NJC and Teachers Pay awards – our 5% 
assumption may be insufficient if inflation stays 
higher for longer 

- Possible COVID19 resurgence, for which we have 
very little budgetary contingency, and would need 
to fall back upon reserves 

- Social care delivery – the true demand pressures 
are currently constrained by what is operationally 
deliverable by the workforce – any positive 
progress made to increase capacity in this area will 
in effect have a negative impact on the budget  

 
Following the significant change to funding from Westminster and 
the unrecognisable inflationary environment, Welsh Government 
has marginally increased its indicative settlement for 2024/25 
from 2.4% to 3.0%. We have not uplifted our assumptions out of 
prudence, based upon: 
 

- The indicative reduction in specific grant values 
could credible outweigh this, dependent upon 
individual grants and the extent to which they 
support core service delivery and fund staffing 
(direct or commissioned) 

- The wide range in Local Authorities individual 
settlements. The 0.6% increase is dwarfed by the 
2.8% variation from highest to lowest settlement.  

 
It should also be noted that within the Westminster Government 
Autumn statement, much of the fiscal tightening is planned in the 
three years following the General Election in 2025.  
 

3.6.3. The following table summarises the main categories of 
reserves held by the Authority. 

 1st Apr 
2022 
£’000 

31st Mch 
2023 
£’000 

31st Mch 
2024 
£’000 

31st Mch 
2025 
£’000 

Schools Reserves 15,205 7,815 7,815 7,815 
General Reserves 13,468 9,995 9.995 9,995 
Earmarked Reserves 139,328 112,831 77,955 61,744 

Tudalen 33



DETAILED REPORT  

 12 

School Reserves 

• Schools have delegated responsibility for the management of 
their own finances.   The level of reserves held by an individual 
school at any point in time will depend on a number of factors 
including the level of contingency fund that the school governing 
body considers appropriate, and the particular plans each 
school has for expenditure. Officers have yet to be informed of 
any transfers to/from these reserves by individual schools for 
future years. 

• Legislation allows schools to carry forward reserves from one 
financial period to another.  The School Funding (Wales) 
Regulations 2010 requires schools to limit their accumulated 
reserves at year end to £50,000 for Primary Schools and 
£100,000 for Secondary and Special Schools or 5% of their 
budget dependent on what is greater. School Improvement 
officers are currently working with schools to ensure they 
comply with the guidance. As at 31st March 2022, 17 primary, 2 
secondary and 1 special schools were in deficit.  

 

3.6.4. General Reserves 

• In the changeable and challenging environment currently facing 
Local Government the Authority is committed to maintaining a 
reasonable level of General reserves or Balances.   Whilst there 
is no prescribed minimum level for Balances, Council has 
previously deemed 3% of net expenditure as being a prudent 
level, which has been accepted by our Auditors as being 
reasonable 

• The overall level of balances is taken into consideration each 
year when the annual budget is set and has on occasions been 
utilised to augment expenditure/reduce council tax. The 2023/24 
budget was set on the basis of no transfers from the General 
Reserves. Based upon the October Budget monitoring (outlined 
in paragraph 3.1.2 above) there could be a draw on General 
Reserves of £3.5m and a fall of £7.4 m in school balances at the 
end of the current financial year. 

• Given the ongoing impact of the pandemic response on our 
budgets and the uncertainty of continued WG support into next 
year, it is deemed imprudent at this stage to assume any further 

Tudalen 34



DETAILED REPORT  

 13 

support for future years budgets from the current General 
Reserves.  

3.6.5. Earmarked Reserves 

• The Authority holds earmarked reserves which have been set 
up to finance the delivery of specific projects, or in protecting the 
authority against future liabilities or issues.   The reserves can 
be summarised as follows: 

Reserve  March 
 2022 
£'000 

March 
 2023 
£'000 

March 
 2024 
£'000 

March 
 2025 
£'000 

March 
 2026 
£'000 

Insurance 13,536  14,286  15,536  15,536  15,536  
Capital Funds 47,557  38,896  19,681  15,202  9,702  
Development Fund (inc Schools 
Dev Fund) 1,033  1,131  2,185  2,191  2,191  
Corporate Retirement Fund 6,171  6,493  6,108  5,747  5,403  
Joint Ventures 1,538  1,504  1,455  1,406  1,387  
Other 69,492  49,819  32,989  21,661  15,694  
TOTAL 139,328  112,131  77,955  61,744  49,915  

 

• As can be seen from the table above the level of earmarked 
reserves fluctuates greatly year on year, and whilst the level in 
each fund is not an exact science it is based on an informed 
estimate and past experience of the likely call on the authority 
in future years in line with the intended purpose of each reserve. 
Great care must therefore be taken when considering utilising 
such funds for purposes other than those which they were 
created as this could lead to the authority being faced with 
substantial unfunded liabilities in the future 

• The budget proposals therefore assume nil contribution from 
reserves in support of the revenue budget in 2023/24 and a 
further analysis of the reserves held will be undertaken over the 
coming months with any further proposed utilisation being 
considered at the budget finalisation stage. 

• Taking account of the proposals within this report, the Director 
of Corporate Services confirms that overall the estimated level 
of financial reserves (as indicated above) is adequate for the 
financial year 2023/24, with the General Reserves being at the 
appropriate level in line with guidelines and good practice, but 
is also very conscious of the significant risks highlighted in 
paragraph 3.6.2 of this Budget Strategy.  

• The Director is also very conscious of the ongoing commitment 
to capital projects and of the demand on future services and 

Tudalen 35



DETAILED REPORT  

 14 

therefore feels the reserves will need to be monitored closely 
going forward. 

4. IMPACT ON THE AUTHORITY’S BUDGET STRATEGY 

The table below provides an updated position on the current financial outlook 
taking account of the provisional settlement and also other recent validation 
changes.  

4.1. The Current Financial Outlook (updated for the Provisional Settlement) 
is set out in the table below: 

 
  

Current MTFP Proposed Financial Model 

 
2023/24 

£’000 
2024/25 

£’000 
2023/24 

£’000  
2024/25 

£’000  
2025/26 

£’000  
Previous Year’s Budget  416,085 430,746 415,885 450,157 463,183 

General Inflation incl energy 5,247 3,203 18,886 2,285 2,614 

Pay Inflation1 6,314 6,430 11,636 8,236 5,733 

Other, incl capital charges and 
release of corp contingency 

1,506 1,165 261 1,454 1,280 

Growth  5,500 5,500 12,150 7,500 7,500 

Savings proposals  -3,908 -3,982 -9,377 -4,384 -3,996 

Further savings to be identified Nil Nil Nil -2,064 -535 

Funding unallocated  Nil Nil 716 Nil Nil 

Net Expenditure  430,746 443,063 450,157 463,183 475,779 

Funded by: 

Revenue Settlement  322,509 330,249 338,017 346,130 354,777 

Council Tax Receipts  108,237 112,814 112,140 117,053 121,002 

Council Tax Increase: 3.41% 3.85% 7.00% 4.00% 3.00% 

1. Includes effect of reductions to pay budgets outlined in paragraph 3.2.8  

4.2. The total of budget reductions now required for 2023/24 is £9.4m and 
for the 3 year period are estimated at £20m.  

4.3. The 2023/24 budget contains £716k which is as yet unallocated, which 
will allow members scope to consider additional information forthcoming 
in respect of: 

Tudalen 36



DETAILED REPORT  

 15 

4.3.1. Responses to the consultation process 

4.3.2. Clarification of specific grants – including the inflationary 
impact of reduced outputs 

4.3.3. Further growth pressures not currently addressed 

4.3.4. Changes in assumptions on inflation and pay offers  

4.3.5. Changes arising from the final settlement 

5. CONSULTATION 

Budget consultation has been planned for the coming month and a summary 
of the individual approaches are as follows: 

5.1. Members seminars. (16-20 January 2023) 

5.2. The public consultation was launched on 21 December 2022 and will 
run until 29 January 2023 

5.3. Town & Community Councils meeting on 19 January 2023 

5.4. Commercial ratepayers consultation in January 2023 

5.5. Consultation with Scrutiny Committees  23-30 January 2023. 

5.6. Consultation with the Schools Budget Forum on 11 January 2023 

5.7. Trade Union Consultation meeting on 18 January 2023 

6. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 

6.1. In considering the budget proposals, members need to take into 
consideration the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The Act requires that we must carry out sustainable 
development, improving the economic, social environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales.  

‘… the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the 
needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs’ 

6.2. In doing so, we must demonstrate the following 5 ways of working: 

• Looking at the long-term so that we do not compromise the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs 

• Understanding the root causes of the issues to prevent them 
recurring 

• Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being 
goals and objectives of other services and partners 

Tudalen 37



DETAILED REPORT  

 16 

• Collaboration – Working with others in a collaborative way to find 
shared sustainable solutions 

• Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them 

6.3. Carmarthenshire’s Well Being objectives were updated in April 2021: 

Start Well  

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life 
experiences 

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles 

Live Well 

3. Support and improve progress, achievement, and outcomes for all 
learners  

4. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work 
and improve the lives of those living in poverty 

5. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county 

6. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes 

7. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 

8. Support community cohesion, resilience and safety  

Age Well 

9. Support older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence 
in their later years 

In a Healthy and Safe & Prosperous Environment 

10. Look after the environment now and for the future 

11. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity 

12. Promote Welsh Language and Culture 

Corporate governance 

13. Better Governance and use of Resources 

 

7. CONCLUSION 

7.1. Currently the budget proposals assume the full delivery of all of the  
savings proposals submitted.  

Tudalen 38



DETAILED REPORT  

 17 

7.2. Work needs to be undertaken to further develop the cost reductions for 
years 2024/25 and 2025/26 to be able to maintain the current Budget 
Strategy and level of council tax. Departments will be working over the 
forthcoming year to refine these savings.  

7.3. It is recognised the critical importance of minimising the Council Tax 
increase for our residents during this cost of living crisis, whilst 
recognising the requirement to set a legally balanced budget in a time 
of economic turmoil.  

7.4. Given the current risks around this Budget Strategy and the ongoing 
inflationary backdrop, the Council Tax increase next year has been 
increased to 7%, seeking to mitigate reductions to critical services 
valued by our residents.  In years 2 and 3, the financial picture remains 
uncertain, and as such we have modelled indicative Council Tax 
increases of 4% and 3% purely for planning purposes, seeking to strike 
a balance with budget reductions. This partially alleviates the scale of 
the reductions proposals which the council needs to consider over future 
years of the Medium Term Financial Plan.  

7.5. Over the coming weeks and part of the refining of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan where the Authority gets further clarification on costs and 
grant funding and feedback on the consultation, the Authority will aim to 
limit the Council Tax increase as far as possible. 

8. RECOMMENDATION 

8.1. That Cabinet:  

8.1.1. Note the contents of the report and approve the three year 
Budget Strategy 2023/24 – 2025/26. This strategy will be 
used to support the budget consultation and form the basis 
of the final budget proposals. 

8.1.2. Note the budget reductions/savings proposals in Appendix 
A, which will be considered as part of the consultation.   

8.1.3. Note the unallocated sum of £716k in the current strategy, 
which will be given further consideration at the completion 
of the consultation as noted in paragraph 4.3.  

Tudalen 39



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX A (i) - SAVINGS PROPOSALS

23rd January 2023

Efficiency Summary

 Proposals

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 718 344 10 1,072 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 718 344 10 1,072

Education 1,048 75 55 1,178 0 0 402 402 175 0 0 175 1,223 75 457 1,755

Schools Delegated 0 0 0 0 0 200 550 750 2,700 300 200 3,200 2,700 500 750 3,950

Corporate Services 325 125 0 450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 325 125 0 450

Communities 2,637 2,650 2,246 7,533 0 0 0 0 75 155 89 319 2,712 2,805 2,335 7,852

Environment 1,408 447 444 2,299 0 0 0 0 291 88 0 379 1,699 535 444 2,678

6,136 3,641 2,755 12,532 0 200 952 1,152 3,241 543 289 4,073 9,377 4,384 3,996 17,757

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE & THE WELSH LANGUAGE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MANAGERIAL EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS NEW POLICY PROPOSALS TOTAL PROPOSALS

page 1 of 5

T
udalen 41



APPENDIX A (i) - SAVINGS PROPOSALS MANAGERIAL 

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2024/25 

Proposed

2025/26 

Proposed
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Children

Director & Management Team

Departmental - cross cutting

various 

across the 

dept

Cross-departmental support costs including administration, financial processing, & 

premises management
0 75 55 130

Reprofiled to allow implementation of programme due to link with school 

rationalisation/federations - therefore dependent upon member 

discussions/workshops.  Root & branch review of support services across the 

Department in order to realise savings and increase flexibility

Departmental - cross cutting

various 

across the 

dept

Cross-departmental support costs including administration, financial processing, & 

premises management
225 0 0 225 BWOW, post covid, online conferences, travel

Total Director & Management Team 225 75 55 355

Education Services 

School based Early Voluntary Retirement / 

redundancy (funded centrally)
176 

Schools are currently provided with budget to fund Teaching Assistants (TAs) for 

pupils with a statement of educational need.  If the pupil moves school, the TA can 

be redundant as they have been employed by a specific school.  

50 0 0 50

Schools have been asked to communicate with the LA any projected 

redundancies. The Change Review Panel, will work closely with schools in an 

effort to re-deploy staff, thus avoiding any avoidable redundancy costs.

School Redundancies 2,133 

The majority of this budget relates to ongoing pension costs from past decisions 

leaving only £100k to meet pension costs. Schools will be charged the redundancy 

element of new demands as schools need to downsize because of pupil numbers 

or school rationalisations. 

100 0 0 100
Transfer responsibilities for redundancy costs to schools (Dept to pick up pension 

strain costs). 

Early Years Non-Maintained
100 (grant 

funded)

The service provides support for our 30 non-maintained settings, focussing on 

ensuring a good start for all early years children attending  settings. Leadership 

support is provided, including monitoring and evaluation to ensure that learning 

experiences meet the need of all children. Professional learning is delivered, 

working alongside 'Early Years' officers and school based practitioners. 

50 0 0 50

We aim to maximise the service delivery to the providers for this age group, 

reflecting on the roles and responsibilities across the Education and children's 

services department and amending the service where applicable. This will result in 

a change to the way that we deliver support. All grants will continue to be 

maximised, relieving pressures on core budgets.

Total Education Services 200 0 0 200

School Improvement

School Improvement -Partneriaeth 1 73 73 0 0 73
To fund contribution to Partneriaeth via grants or negotiate a reduced / nil level of 

core funding.

School Improvement -Partneriaeth 2 N/A 200 200
On top of original £73k proposal. Reduced activities provided by Partneriaeth and 

deliver them by utilising the regional grant locally. 

Total School Improvement 273 0 0 273

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Partneriaeth contributes to the range of support, intervention and professional 

development activities led by our Education Support Advisors' Team. We work in 

close partnership with two neighbouring Local Authorities (Pembrokeshire & 

Swansea). This ‘regional alliance’ supports our school improvement services to 

implement effective support strategies across a wide range of specific areas of 

focus, for example curriculum provision and leadership development. Local, 

regional and national priorities, as outlined by Welsh Government within the 

‘National Model for Regional Working’ (WG Guidance 126/2014, February 2014) 

and 'Education in Wales - Our National Mission' are supported in full. Partneriaeth 

are paid a contribution that has been funded from core budget to date.

page 2 of 5

T
udalen 42



APPENDIX A (i) - SAVINGS PROPOSALS MANAGERIAL 

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2024/25 

Proposed

2025/26 

Proposed
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Curriculum & Wellbeing

Youth Support Service 586

Carmarthenshire Youth Support Service was established on 1/1/16 bringing 

together the Carmarthenshire Youth Service and the Carmarthenshire Youth 

Offending Service under a single integrated management structure.  The Youth 

Support Service allows for the development of a more holistic approach to the 

delivery of the youth support services across Carmarthenshire. The service retains 

the statutory functions of the Youth Justice Team; promotes the ethos of working 

together to deliver targeted support and retains elements of direct universal youth 

work provision.  Includes Youth Work Strategy Grant, YE&P Framework Grant, 

YJB YOT Partnership Grant, Promoting Positive Engagement Grant, Dyfed Powys 

Police & Crime Commissioner. Key responsibilities under Participation include the 

Children & Young People’s Participation Strategy, support for Carmarthenshire 

Youth Council, support for School Councils, participation of vulnerable groups 

including the Junior Local Safeguarding Children’s Board and Children’s Rights.

100 0 0 100
Reconsideration not to proceed with a new post, keeping two p/time posts vacant 

(total =1.1FTE), reducing general expenditure, photocopying and transport.

Total Curriculum & Wellbeing 100 0 0 100

Education & Children Total 798 75 55 928

MANAGERIAL Total 798 75 55 928

page 3 of 5

T
udalen 43



APPENDIX A (i) - SAVINGS PROPOSALS EXISTING POLICY

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2024/25 

Proposed

2025/26 

Proposed
Total

£'000 £'000 £'001 £'000 £'000

Education & Children

School Improvement 1,484 

The Council is obliged to employ a notional number of officers to provide a School 

Improvement Service to meet the needs of our schools. With a reduced number of 

schools it is possible to review this notional figure.

0 0 122 122

Reprofiled due to direct link to review of MEP.  Reduction in School Challenge 

Advisor levels equivalent to 1 FTE on the basis that the school rationalisation 

programme is progressed - dependent upon member discussions/workshops    

Departmental - across Education Services 17,295 

The majority of the Services' budgets are for the support, administration and 

management of the schools - School improvement, Grant support, Data, 

Admissions, School Meals, Music Service, ALN, safeguarding to name a few

0 0 280 280

Reprofiled due to direct link to review of MEP.  Rationalising of Primary 

Schools will  reduce the level of support required. The savings would actually 

be managerial as service provision would not be reduced, however it is a 

policy decision that would enable this efficiency to be delivered. As with other 

linked savings, it is dependent upon member discussions/workshops.

Education & Children Total 0 0 402 402

Schools Delegated Budget

Primary School Delegated Budget 67,171 

We have a statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient primary and secondary 

schools in Carmarthenshire. This may involve opening new schools or adding 

places to existing schools where extra capacity is required. It may also mean 

reducing in size or closing schools with surplus accommodation. The challenge for 

the Council in attempting to secure value for money is to provide the right number 

of places in the right locations, to secure efficient and effective education for the 

pupils in its area. We have the second highest number of primary schools in Wales 

(94 Primary schools) and sustaining this number of schools provides many 

challenges including; recruitment and retention of staff, securing sustainable 

leadership, ensuring adequate funding to meet the needs of all learners and 

maintaining the school buildings.

0 200 550 750

We are proposing to review our primary schools’ footprint, especially those 

unable to sustain effective staffing structures due to low pupil numbers and 

those that are disproportionately expensive to operate. Through carefully 

selected remodelling, strategically driven school federations and investment in 

sustainable settings the primary school estate could be reduced. The need to 

move to a more effective and efficient model is imperative and could improve 

the financial stability of the remaining schools and reduce demands on a 

range of County Council services e.g., Finance, HR, catering, cleaning.

Schools Delegated Budget Total 0 200 550 750

EXISTING POLICY Total 0 200 952 1,152

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

page 4 of 5

T
udalen 44



APPENDIX A (i) - SAVINGS PROPOSALS NEW POLICY

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget
FACT FILE

2023/24 

Proposed

2024/25 

Proposed

2025/26 

Proposed
Total EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Children

School Music Service 333

Carmarthenshire Music Service provides weekly tuition to 

around 5000 children and young people across 

Carmarthenshire. With the introduction of the new Curriculum 

for Wales, the music service will evolve to deliver, engage, 

motivate and encourage learners to develop their creative 

skills.

75              0 0 75               

We propose to look at all options to reduce costs including staffing and not appointing to 

vacant positions. We will review the skill set and balance required between staffing who 

hold qualified teacher status, paid on school teacher's pay and conditions, and those 

employed on a 'tutor' basis, aiming to meet the needs of schools efficiently.

Youth Support Services 586

The Youth Support Service provides a range of statutory and 

non-statutory functions to meet the needs of Carmarthenshire's 

children and young people. The service offers support from 

universal youth support e.g. Youth Clubs, through to specialist 

interventions supporting children and young people with 

complex needs. This incorporates School-based Youth Work; 

Youth Justice and Post 16 provision.

100 0 0 100

£16k reduction in youth club support (will try to replace with grant allocations) 

£84k reducing full time school based youth workers to 0.8FTE (potential for 

schools to fund 0.2 or be utilised for other youth work for the 0.2).             

Education & Children Total 175 0 0 175

Schools Delegated Budget

Delegated Schools Budget 128,035 

In recent years, the delegated school budget has been 

protected by the Council. This budget is delegated to every 

school (1 nursery, 94 Primary, 2 special and 12 secondary) 

under the fair funding formula. This budget is to meet all the 

costs associated with running a school (e.g., employment of 

teachers and support staff, support for learners, buying 

resources and equipment, Premises costs, Cleaning, HR, IT, 

etc.).

2,700 0 0 2,700

While we will continue to provide full funding to meet the substantial increase in 

energy costs and teacher staff pay awards, we propose that the delegated 

budget to schools should be reduced by 2.1% in line with all other Council 

Departments. The management of the overall delegated school budget will be 

the responsibility of the school’s governing body who will have to manage this 

reduction.

Primary Schools Rising 4's Policy 67,171 

The statutory requirement is to provide full time education from 

5 years of age. We currently have a Rising 4's policy that 

allows learners full time admission to primary schools in the 

school term of their fourth birthday rather than the term after 

their fourth birthday, or the September after their fourth 

birthday, which is common practice across Wales.

0 300 200 500

These non-statutory aged pupils receive a full-time education in a school when 

funding is available to provide this provision in alternative settings. The childcare 

funding for Wales provided by Welsh Government provides up to 30 hours free 

education and childcare for children aged between 3-4 for up to 48 weeks of the 

year. At a time when revenue expenditure is under extreme pressure, the funding 

of non-statutory full-time pupils at such an early age could be re-prioritised to 

fund other statutory functions from the schools delegated budget. Therefore, we 

are proposing to remove the rising 4's policy.

Schools Delegated Budget Total 2,700 300 200 3,200

NEW POLICY Total 2,875 300 200 3,375

page 5 of 5

T
udalen 45



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Demographic, Legislative or continuing pressures APPENDIX A (ii)

Description Bid Indicative Allocation

2023-24 2023-24

£'000 £'000

Fostering - uplift in allowances
Increase applied May 2022, compounded 

by forecast increase for 2023
700

Childrens services - Residential settings
Creation of Ty Magu offering has created 

an unfunded staffing structure
300

ALN, ASD, Behaviour and Inclusion

Increase demand including statementing - 

commitments legally required in excess of 

current budgets

2,801

School Meals service Includes allowance for food inflation 1,200

Other 30

Total for the Education & Childrens Department 5,031 3,750

T
udalen 47



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX B

Oct 2022

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools Delegated Budgets 150,322 -22,286 0 128,035 157,712 -22,286 0 135,425 7,390

Reserve Utilisation 0 -7,390 -7,390 -7,390 

Director & Strategic Management 1,608 0 -109 1,499 1,368 0 -109 1,259 -240 

Education Services Division 5,905 -1,579 17,587 21,913 7,885 -3,684 17,587 21,787 -125 

Access to Education 3,496 -103 1,339 4,733 11,529 -7,660 1,339 5,208 476

School Improvement 2,271 -119 460 2,613 11,182 -9,020 460 2,622 10

Curriculum & Wellbeing 9,721 -4,300 895 6,316 10,433 -5,247 895 6,081 -235 

Children's Services 1,740 -538 134 1,336 2,136 -948 134 1,322 -14 

TOTAL excluding schools 24,742 -6,639 20,307 38,409 44,533 -26,558 20,307 38,281 -128 

GRAND TOTAL 175,063 -28,925 20,307 166,445 202,245 -56,234 20,307 166,317 -128 

Education, Young People and the Welsh Language Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2022 - Summary

Working Budget Forecasted
Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 49



APPENDIX B

Oct 2022

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Primary Schools 77,981 -10,810 0 67,171 82,681 -10,810 0 71,871 4,700

Secondary Schools 68,762 -11,327 0 57,435 71,472 -11,327 0 60,145 2,710

Special Schools 3,579 -150 0 3,429 3,559 -150 0 3,409 -20 

Utilisation of school reserves 0 -7,390 -7,390 -7,390 

Total Schools Delegated Budget 150,322 -22,286 0 128,035 157,712 -29,676 0 128,035 -0 

Director & Management Team 1,238 0 -180 1,057 1,003 0 -180 822 -235 

£225k earmarked for 2023/24 efficiency this year reducing the 

department's in year overspend.  £590k has been vired to ALN 

since August.

Business Support 371 0 71 442 366 0 71 437 -5 

Total Director & Strategic Management 1,608 0 -109 1,499 1,368 0 -109 1,259 -240 

School Expenditure not currently delegated 110 0 17,385 17,495 110 -0 17,385 17,495 0

School Redundancy & EVR 2,133 0 20 2,153 1,980 0 20 2,000 -153 

Low number of school redundancies due to the surpluses brought 

forward & continuation of RRRS grant

Early Years Non-Maintained Provision 364 0 9 373 912 -828 9 93 -280 

WG grant funding received where already committed core 

budget.  In year underspend supporting department pressures

Additional Learning Needs 3,298 -1,579 173 1,892 4,883 -2,856 173 2,200 308

New ALN pressures in excess of the already committed budget 

for school provision. Growth budget and reserve funding has 

been applied to specific pressures within the service since August

Total Education Services Division 5,905 -1,579 17,587 21,913 7,885 -3,684 17,587 21,787 -125 

School Admissions 420 0 29 449 343 0 29 373 -77 Part year vacant posts currently being recruited to

School Modernisation 142 0 814 956 296 -44 814 1,066 110

£101k closed schools & £9k additional transport costs following 

school reorganisations

School Meals & Primary Free Breakfast 

Services 2,934 -103 496 3,328 10,890 -7,616 496 3,770 442

Based on existing costs and income levels for school meals 

£299k. Primary breakfast contributions for care element shortfall 

£90k & increased costs of food & labour £53k

Total Access to Education 3,496 -103 1,339 4,733 11,529 -7,660 1,339 5,208 476

School Improvement 1,484 0 319 1,802 1,631 -139 319 1,811 9

Education Improvement Grant 669 0 0 669 7,788 -7,119 0 669 0

Other School Grants incl PDG 119 -119 142 142 1,763 -1,762 142 142 1

Total School Improvement 2,271 -119 460 2,613 11,182 -9,020 460 2,622 10

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2022 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

Education, Young People and the Welsh Language Scrutiny Report 

T
udalen 50



APPENDIX B

Oct 2022

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2022 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

Education, Young People and the Welsh Language Scrutiny Report 

Post 16 Funding 2 0 0 2 152 -150 0 2 1

Music Services for Schools 1,542 -1,210 46 379 1,574 -1,230 46 390 11

Welsh Language Support 624 -186 88 526 636 -186 88 539 12

Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) 3,506 -226 196 3,477 3,945 -616 196 3,525 48

Increased agency costs due to staff absences across the 4 

settings

CCG - Families First Grant (Youth) 566 -564 0 2 579 -577 0 2 0

Youth Support Service & Participation 2,239 -1,217 388 1,410 2,089 -1,207 388 1,270 -140 

Number of part year staff vacancies, delays in recruitment and 

additional short term grants being utilised

Adult & Community Learning 556 -556 92 92 997 -995 92 94 1

European Funded Projects 315 -314 38 39 208 -259 38 -13 -51 

Project led by Pembs CC ended in May 2021, final grant income 

is still outstanding.  £51k underspend on the flat rate allowance 

for indirect costs has been achieved due to the project not fully 

spending 15% allowance provided to cover any indirect or 

ineligible items.  The project could still be subject to further 

European audits

School Information Systems 370 -28 47 389 253 -28 47 272 -117 

Part year vacant posts being reviewed as part of current 

restructure

Total Curriculum and Wellbeing 9,721 -4,300 895 6,316 10,433 -5,247 895 6,081 -235 

School Safeguarding & Attendance 648 -354 75 369 807 -516 75 365 -3 

Educational Psychology 1,092 -184 60 967 1,329 -432 60 957 -10 

Total Children's Services 1,740 -538 134 1,336 2,136 -948 134 1,322 -14 

TOTAL FOR EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S 

SERVICES DEPARTMENT 24,742 -6,639 20,307 38,409 44,533 -26,558 20,307 38,281 -128 

TOTAL FOR EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S 

SERVICES DEPARTMENT INCLUDING 

SCHOOLS 175,063 -28,925 20,307 166,445 202,245 -56,234 20,307 166,317 -128 

T
udalen 51



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Education & Children

2021/22 

Actual

2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Budget Business Unit Service Provided

                                                 

2022/23                             

Charge Levied

                                                 

2023/24                             

Proposed Charge Comments

£ £ £ £ £

Curriculum and 

Wellbeing

Community Centres

Room Hire

1,716 5,100 5,200 Hourly - No Refreshments - minimum 1 hour 11.67 12.84 10% increase.

Curriculum and 

Wellbeing

Welsh for Adults

24,044 23,921 13,500

Welsh for Adults charge for courses provided on behalf of 

the National Learning Welsh Centre (Full/Concessionary)

90.00

2022/23 charges are correct as listed.  

Charges reviewed and amended by the 

National Centre for Learning Welsh.  

Charges for 2023/24 will depend on fees 

set by the NCLW and number of 

participants.  Concessionary Rate of 40% 

will apply when full fees are paid.  We 

have been over-subscribed in previous 

years with additional courses being run, 

we cannot guarentee this will continue 

each year.                                                                                                         

Welsh for the family course (15 hours over 10 weeks) Not staged in 2022/23 Charges reviewed and amended by the 

National Centre for Learning Welsh.  

Charges for 2023/24 will depend on fees 

set by the NCLW.  16-18, and 18-25 

Young People and Teaching staff are 

eligible for 100% discount.                                                                                                                 

Early Bird Discount - if paid by end of September 50%

2022/23 charges are correct as listed.  

Early Bird % discount applied against full 

price only. No further discount on 

concessionary rate.  New courses offered 

in January 2023 will also have this 

discount applied.

Room Hire

0 0 0 Hourly - Llandeilo Community Centre 11.67 Not applicable

Community Centre demolished 

07/11/2022

To be confirmed by NCLW 

as per comment

T
udalen 53



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Education & Children

2021/22 

Actual

2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Budget Business Unit Service Provided

                                                 

2022/23                             

Charge Levied

                                                 

2023/24                             

Proposed Charge Comments

£ £ £ £ £

Curriculum and 

Wellbeing Adult Community Learning

9,832 10,000 10,200

LA courses - 

Full fee per course term 85.00 (75.00 + 10.00 

Accreditation Fee)

 85.00 (75.00 + 10.00 

Accreditation Fee)

No increase appropriate for client group

Basic Skills  & ESOL - 

ESOL – Full Cost Recovery (not eligible for Welsh 

Government funding) - per term

200.00 200.00

One off registration fee at Basic Skills Centre 10.00 10.00 No increase appropriate for client group

Dyslexia Screening - 2.5 hours & resources 75.00 75.00 No increase appropriate for client group

ESOL City & Guilds examination fee 50.00 50.00 No increase appropriate for client group

GCSE Maths&English (Initial paper/second maths paper) 60.00 / 30.00 60.00 / 30.00 No increase appropriate for client group

Curriculum and 

Wellbeing Carmarthenshire Music Service

0 1,500 1,500  

Concert Ticket Charges for concerts, including the Lyric & 

Ffwrnes Theatres

   Adult 9.00         

Concession 7.00

Adult 9.00         

Concession 7.00

No income 2021/22 due to COVID19.  

Concert prices will need to remain the 

same to continue to encourage parents 

and pupils to return to attending activities 

and events.

0 5,000 7,000
Parental charge for Intermediate and Senior Ensemble 

pupils attending weekly rehearsals.

70.00 per pupil for the 

academic year

70.00 per pupil for the 

academic year

No income 2021/22 due to COVID19.  

Proposed that charges for pupils remain at 

£70 for the 2023/24 academic year due to 

the cost of living issues that currently 

exist. Parents have contacted the music 

service informing us that charges are 

currently cost prohibitive and we have 

notice a reduction in numbers attending 

rehearsals at Senior level. This reduction, 

along with COVID19 issues, is proving 

challenging for restarting activities for 

pupils that assist greatly with wellbeing.

T
udalen 54



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Education & Children

2021/22 

Actual

2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Budget Business Unit Service Provided

                                                 

2022/23                             

Charge Levied

                                                 

2023/24                             

Proposed Charge Comments

£ £ £ £ £

178 200 200 Administrative charge added to all examinations fees 

collected for ABRSM and Trinity Guildhall Examinations

2.00 administration fee to be 

added to the cost of each 

graded exam 

2.00 administration fee to 

be added to the cost of 

each graded exam 

The administration charge is based on the 

fees set nationally by the examination 

boards. The fees have increased 

significantly this year, therefore, to ensure 

that pupils continue to engage, we will 

keep costs the same.

Curriculum and 

Wellbeing Youth Support Service 

Room Hire

618 500 550
Hire per hour - Bwlch Youth & Community Centre and 

Streets Youth Club.
11.67 12.84 10% increase

Education 

Services In Service Training (INSET) - 

 Course/Consultancy Fees

150 1,900 1,400 Inspection Duties / Advisory Services As per contract/tender As per contract/tender Dependent on Estyn requests

Education 

Services Griffith Jones Training Centre

14,850 0 0 Lettings Griffith Jones Centre - Half Day/Full day 60.00 / 96.80 Not applicable Training Centre transferred for school use 

wef 01/09/2022

T
udalen 55



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Education & Children

2021/22 

Actual

2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Budget Business Unit Service Provided

                                                 

2022/23                             

Charge Levied

                                                 

2023/24                             

Proposed Charge Comments

£ £ £ £ £

Education 

Services Neuadd y Gwendraeth

14,177 14,000 15,000

Hall - Half Day / Full Day / Evening 108.10 / 163.20 / 140.75 118.91 / 179.52 / 154.83

Sound & Light - System only / System & Technician 21.90 / 43.85 24.09 / 48.24

Training Room - Half Day / Full Day / Evening 60.00 / 96.80 / 80.20 66.00 / 106.48 / 88.22

Meeting Room - Half Day / Full Day / Evening 60.00 / 96.80 / 80.20 66.00 / 106.48  / 88.22

Full building - Half Day / Full Day / Evening 163.20 / 216.25 / 193.80 179.52 / 237.88 / 213.18

Performance package (practice & show) - full building 195.85 215.44

Half day practice - full building 54.00 59.40

10% increase

T
udalen 56



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Education & Children

2021/22 

Actual

2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Budget Business Unit Service Provided

                                                 

2022/23                            

Charge Levied 

                                                 

2023/24                            

Proposed Charge Comments

£ £ £ £

4,846,688 4,910,549 5,000,000 School Meals

Primary Schools

Pupil Meal 2.67 2.94 10% inflation increase (27p)

Adult Meal 4.16 4.58 10% inflation increase as per Primary meal (42p)

Secondary Schools

Free Meal Token - Pupil 2.67 2.94 10% inflation increase (27p)

Free Meal Token - Adult 2.67 2.94 10% inflation increase (27p)

Paid meals - cafeteria various various +10% 10% inflation increase on all items

T
udalen 57



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A’R GYMRAEG  
23 IONAWR 2023 

 
 

EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU 
 
 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 
Ystyried yr eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno adroddiad craffu. 

 
 

Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor Craffu: 
 
Nodi’r eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno adroddiad craffu. 
 
Rhesymau:  

 
Mae’n ofynnol yn ôl Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor bod Pwyllgorau Craffu yn datblygu, 
cyhoeddi ac adolygu Blaengynllun Gwaith sy’n nodi’r pynciau a’r adroddiadau sydd i’w 
hystyried yn ystod y blwyddyn.   Os na chyflwynir adroddiad fel y’i trefnwyd, disgwylir i 
swyddogion baratoi eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno adroddiad craffu sy’n egluro’r 
rheswm(au) pam. 
 
 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  NAC OES 
 
 
Yr Aelod Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:   Y Cynghorydd Glynog Davies, Aelod 
Cabinet dros Addysg a'r Gymraeg 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Prif Weithredwr 
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Linda Rees Jones 
 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Julie Owens 

 
 
 
Swydd: 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 
Gyfraith 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 

 
 
 
Rhifau ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
01267 224010 
lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
01267 224088 
juowens@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

 
  

Tudalen 59

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

23 JANUARY 2023 
 
 

NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

The Council’s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees to develop, publish and keep 
under review an annual Forward Work Plan which identifies the issues and reports to be 
considered at meetings during the course of the year.   
 
If a report is not presented as scheduled, officers are expected to prepare a non-
submission report explaining the reason(s) why. 
 

 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES 
 

 
 

Tudalen 60



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
                              Head of Administration & Law  

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 

 
NONE  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
 
Title of Document 
 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

 
 

Tudalen 61



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

23 JANUARY 2023 
 

EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION  
OF SCRUTINY REPORTS 

 
ITEM 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 
 

EXPLANATION: 
 

REVISED 
SUBMISSION 
DATE 

Corporate Strategy 
and Education and 
Children’s Services 
draft Business Plan 

Noelwyn Daniel The Council’s new Corporate 
Strategy 2022-27 will take a new 
approach from previous 
versions which will also impact 
on business planning 
arrangements. The aim is to 
ensure greater alignment across 
the Council and to further 
strengthen performance 
management. In order to fully 
outline and seek feedback on 
this new approach a members’ 
development session is being 
held on 27 January 2023 
(invitation has been sent to all 
councillors). Feedback from this 
session will be considered in the 
development of the final version 
of the Corporate Strategy and 
business plans will be made 
available to scrutiny committees 
from end of February 2023.  
 

16th March 2023 

10 Year Social 
Services Strategy 

Jake Morgan  There is a draft in progress, 
Director and HOS met on 10-01-
2023 to discuss further to 
develop the document into its 
consultation format.  
The document will need to go 
into Scrutiny for initial 
consultation, to provide feedback 
and re-presented for its final 
approval later in the year.    
 
 

Autumn 2023 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 63



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A’R GYMRAEG 
23 IONAWR 2023 

 
 

DIWEDDARIAD AR GAMAU GWEITHREDU Y PWYLLGOR 
CRAFFU 

 

Y Pwrpas:  
 
Rhoi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor am y camau a gymerwyd mewn ymateb i benderfyniadau a wnaed. 
 

 

Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor Craffu: 
 
Adolygu’r cynnydd a wnaed mewn perthynas â chamau gweithredu, ceisiadau neu 
atgyfeiriadau a gofnodwyd yn ystod cyfarfodydd blaenorol y Pwyllgor.  
 
Y rhesymau:  
 
Galluogi'r aelodau i gyflawni eu rôl graffu mewn perthynas â monitro perfformiad. 
 

Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Cabinet / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud 
penderfyniad:    
Nac Oes    
 

 

Yr Aelod Cabinet Sy'n Gyfrifol Am Y Portffolio: 
Amherthnasol 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Prif Weithredwr 
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Linda Rees Jones 
 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Julie Owens 

 
 
 
Swydd: 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 
Gyfraith 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 

 
 
 
Rhifau ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
01267 224010 
lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
01267 224088 
juowens@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Tudalen 65

Eitem Rhif  7

mailto:lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

23 JANUARY 2023 
 

 

SCRUTINY ACTIONS UPDATE 
 

 
During the course of a municipal year, several requests for additional information are made by 
the Committee in order to assist it in discharging its scrutiny role.  
 
The attached report provides members of the Committee with an update on the progress 
made in relation to these requests.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  
 

 
 

Tudalen 66



 

 
IMPLICATIONS  

 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed:  Linda Rees Jones                                       Head of  Administration and Law                        
 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE  
 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
 

N/A 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

 
 
 

Tudalen 67



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Education, Young People and the Wels Language Scrutiny Committee - Actions & Referrals 2022/23
Action No. Meeting Date Recommendation/Minute Text / Action Required Progress Update Responsible Member(s) /

Officer(s)
Status

EYP&WL22/23-01 01.09.2022 FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION: a workshop be arranged in early 2023
to provide information on the Post 16 Review, Vocational Qualifications and
NEETs. The Workshop to include an analysis of the gaps in supply of workers
locally, together with funding issues associated with NEETs.  The final report to be
presented to the Committee on 16.03.2023

Provisional Date set for 10.02.2023 Julian Dessent,
Curriculum & Learning
Network Manager

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-02 01.09.2022 FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION: Given the change in membership
following the 2022 local government elections, the Chair requested that previous
reports on Elective Home Education (EHE) be circulated to the Committee. This
information will determine what further reports/inforrmation should be requested by
the Committee going forward given that the Council was limited in terms of funding
and powers to progress this matter.
 

Previous reports and WG statistics circulated to the
Committee 13/12/2022

Jan Coles, Head of
Children's Services / Julie
Owens, Democratic
Services Officer

complete

EYP&WL22/23-03 01.09.2022 FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION: Workshop on Self Evaluation and
School Data to be provided as soon as possible.

Workshop delivered on 18.10.2022 Heads of Services complete

EYP&WL22/23-04 01.09.2022 FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION: Members, in recognising the benefits
of site visits, expressed a desire to resume these in 2023 on the provision that
schools were comfortable in hosting site visits.

Aneirin Thomas, Head of
Educaiton and Inclusion
Services

EYP&WL22/23-05 01.09.2022 &
13.09.2022

FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION AND SCORING MATRIX SESSION:
An information note to be circulated to all County Councillors to provide an update
on the progress made with the roll-out of the provision of free school meals.
Furthermore, an update report to be circulated setting out how the Eligibility for
Free School Meals (EFSM) categorisation issue has been addressed and will be
measured going forward.

Gareth Morgans, Director
of Education and
Children's Services.

EYP&WL22/23-06 01.09.2022 FORWARD WORK PLANNING SESSION: A development session to be arranged
setting out the role and remit of the  Committee following confirmation of its revised
Terms of Reference.

Development session provided on 01.12.2022 Gareth Morgans, Director
of Education and
Children's Services / Linda
Rees Jones, Head of
Administration and Law

complete

EYP&WL22/23-07 13.09.2022 SCORING MATRIX SESSION: The Education department to determine
appropriate date for a report to be prsented to the Committee on "Transformation,
Innovation Change (TIC), including school budgets".

Incoporated into the Forward Work Plan 2022/23 -
report to be presented 16.03.2023

Heads of Service/ Gareth
Morgans, Director of
Education and Children's
Services

complete

EYP&WL22/23-08 13.09.2022 SCORING MATRIX SESSION: possible report to be provided on the topic of
"Team Around the Family", if considered to be within the remit of the Committee.

Forward Work Planning Session arranged for
19.01.2023 whereby the relevance of the report to the
Committee's remit will be discussed.  If appropriate,
dates to be confirmed for the Forward Work Plan.

All Members / Gareth
Morgans, Director of
Education and Children's
Services

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-09 13.09.2022 SCORING MATRIX SESSION:The Education department to determine an
appropriate date for a report to be prsented to the Committee on "Sustainable
Communities for Learning Programme".

Incoporated into the Forward Work Plan 2022/23 -
report to be presented 20.04.2023

Heads of Service/ Gareth
Morgans, Director of
Education and Children's
Services

complete

EYP&WL22/23-10  13.09.202 SCORING MATRIX SESSION: The Education department to determine an
appropriate date for a report to be presented to the Committee on the provision of
education post-COVID. Committee Members to set out the report requirements.

Forward Work Planning Session arranged for
19.01.2023 whereby the content and the date for the
receipt of the report will be agreed.

All ongoing

T
udalen 69



EYP&WL22/23-11  01.09.22 &
13.09.202

FORWARD PLANNING SESSION AND SCORING MATRIX SESSION: Report on
the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) to be considered by the Committee
in the Autumn of 2023 following publication of the first year annual report.

Incorporated into the Forward Work Plan for 2023/24 Julie Owens, Democratic
Services Officer

complete

EYP&WL22/23-12  01.09.2022 &
13.09.2022

FORWARD PLANNING SESSION AND SCORING MATRIX SESSION: Further
information on the Welsh in Education Forum terms of reference and
membership be circulated to the Committee.

Gareth Morgans, Director
of Education and
Children's Services / Head
of Service

EYP&WL22/23-13 06/10/2022 EDUCATION AND CHILDREN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT
2021/22 Typographical correction to section 6.2.3 of the report which would be
updated to reflect that the committee had considered its report in 2021.

report updated on 06/10/2022.  Currently awaiting
translation of the annual report before it can be
published on the website.

Julie Owens, Democratic
Services Officer

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-14 06/10/2022  EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN FOR 2022/23 A request was made for an
update on the recommendations from the School Organisation Consultation
Process Task and Finish Group report to be incorporated into the Forward Work
Plan.

Forward Work Planning Session arranged for
19/01/2023 whereby the date for receipt of the report
will be agreed.

All ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-15 06/10/2022 FORTHCOMING ITEMS - Cabinet Member for Health and Social Services to be
invited to the next meeting to present the Carmarthenshire Youth Justice Plan

The Cabinet Member for Health and Social Services
presented the Youth Justice Plan at the Scrutiny
Meeting held on 01/12/2022

Democratic Services
Officer

complete

EYP&WL22/23-16 18/10/2022 SELF EVALUATION AND SCHOOL DATA WORKSHOP - Survey to be
distributed to Parent Governors to collate data, including the issues
experienced with the HWB platform, with a view to providing appropriate
support in their roles.

Elin Forsyth, Head of
School Effectiveness

EYP&WL22/23-17 01/12/2022 YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN - the graphical representation set out at page 19 of the
Youth Justice Plan pertaining to ‘offence type’ had been condensed and would
therefore be re-issued to the Committee with the full information.

Updated graph and key circulated to Committee
Members on 05/12/2022

Gill Adams, Youth Support
Service Principal Manager

Complete

EYP&WL22/23-18 01/12/2022 YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN - Future reports to contain a comprehensive glossary to
explain the full list of abbreviations, and keys would be provided to enable readers
to easily interpret the graphical representations.

Noted for the Youth Justice Plan 2023/24 Aeron Rees, Head of
Strategy and Learner
Support  / Gill Adams,
Youth Support Service
Principal Manager

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-19 01/12/2022 DRAFT COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 Page 19 - "Well-being
Objective 1 Start Well - Help to give every child the best start in life and improve
their early life experiences".  Wording on graphs to be reviewed in terms of
accuracy because, whilst the long-term trend has reduced, the figures for 2021/22
represent an increase on the previous year.

Head of Service / Robert
James, Strategic
Performance Manager /
John Buck, Performance
and Information Officer

EYP&WL22/23-20 01/12/2022 DRAFT COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 - Comparable information
between the level of EU grant funding and the Shared Prosperity Fund to be
provided to the Committee in due course.

Seeking information Aeron Rees, Head of
Strategy and Learner
Support

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-21 01/12/2022 DRAFT COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 - An update on the
ongoing work within the Authority to tackle poverty in the education system
to be circulated ot the Committee in due course.

An update can be made available on request subject to
reasonable notification.

Aeron Rees, Head of
Strategy and Learner
Support

ongoing

EYP&WL22/23-22 01/12/2022 EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORT -
The report on 'Support for curriculum development across the schools in
Carmarthenshire' to be provided to Committee at its meeting on 23.01.23.
Represenetatives from PARTNERIAETH to be invited.

Report incorporated into the Forward Work Plan
2022/23 and a request sent to the Performance
Information Officer on 01.12.2022

Elin Forsyth, Head of
School Effectiveness /
Julie Owens, Demcoratic
Services Officer / John
Buck, Performance and
Information Officer

ongoing

T
udalen 70



 

 
Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A’R GYMRAEG  

23 Ionawr 2023 
 
 

EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 
 

Y Pwrpas 
 
I ddarparu gwybodaeth gefnir ar yr eitemau sydd i’w hystyried yng nhyfarfod nesaf y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg, Pobl Ifanc a’r Gymraeg yn ei gyfarfod nesaf. 
 
Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor Craffu ystyried y materion canlynol a 
chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 
Nodi’r eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol i’w hystyried yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu 
Addysg, Pobl Ifanc a’r Gymraeg i’w gynnal ar 16 Mawrth 2023. 

 
 
Y Rhesymau:  
 
Mae’n ofynnol yn ôl Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor bod Pwyllgorau Craffu, ar dechrau bob 
blwyddyn y cyngor, yn datblygu ac yn cyhoeddi Blaengynllun Gwaith sy’n nodi’r pynciau 
a’r adroddiadau sydd i’w hystyried yn ystod y blwyddyn.      
 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet er mwyn gwneud 
penderfyniad:   
Nac Oes. 
 
Yr Aelod Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:    
Cyng. Glynog Davies (Addysg a’r Gymraeg)    
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Prif Weithredwr 
 
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Linda Rees-Jones 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Julie Owens 
 

Swydd: 
 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd  

Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriad 
E-Bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224010 
lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 2244088 
juowens@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 71

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:juowens@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

23 JANUARY 2023 
 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS 
 

 

The Council’s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees, at the commencement of each 
municipal year, to develop and publish a Forward Work Plan which identifies the issues 
and reports to be considered at meetings during the course of the year.  When 
formulating the Forward Work Plan the Scrutiny Committee will take into consideration 
those items included on the Cabinet’s Forward Work Plan. 

The list of forthcoming items attached includes those items which are scheduled in the 
latest version of the Education, Young People and the Welsh Language Scrutiny 
Committee’s Forward Work Plan to be considered at its next meeting. 

 

The published Cabinet Forward Work Plan, at the time of publication of this meeting 
pack, is attached to this report.  However, as the Cabinet Forward Plan is updated on a 
regular basis, the most recent version is available to view in the following link:-  
 
Browse meetings - Education, Young People & the Welsh Language Scrutiny 
Committee - Carmarthenshire County Council (moderngov.co.uk) 
 

Also attached for information is the 2022/23 Forward Work Plan for the Education, 
Young People and the Welsh Language Scrutiny Committee, however it should be noted 
that the Committee is scheduled to meet on the 19 January 2023 to review the Forward 
Work Plan. 

 

DETAILED REPORT 
ATTACHED? 
 

YES: 
(1) List of Forthcoming Items 
(2) Cabinet Forward Work Plan  
(3) Education, Young People and Welsh Language Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Plan 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 72

https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=405&LLL=1
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=405&LLL=1


 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the 
appropriate Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there 
are no other implications associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 

 
NONE  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER AWARE / 
CONSULTED  
 

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 73



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS – TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE NEXT MEETING OF THE 
EDUCATION, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THE WELSH LANGUAGE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

TO BE HELD ON 16 MARCH 2023 
 

In order to ensure effective Scrutiny, Members need to be clear as to the purpose of requesting specific information and the outcome they are 
hoping to achieve as a consequence of examining a report.  Limiting the number of agenda items may help to keep meetings focused and 

easier to manage. 
 
Agenda Item 
 

Background Reason for report 

Post 16 Review - including 
Vocational Qualifications 
and those Not in Education, 
Employment and Training 
(NEETs) 

The post 16 landscape is changing. A thorough review 
of Post 16 Education in Carmarthenshire is therefore 
underway. The review will gain a picture of how our 
provision ensures entitlement to an outstanding, broad 
and bilingual Post 16 curriculum, with clear pathways 
to higher education and the world of work. 

To give Scrutiny Members the opportunity to 
review and comment on the report following on 
from the work undertaken at the Post 16 
Workshop. 

Transformation, Innovation 
Change (TIC), including 
school budgets. 
 

The Schools’ Transformation Programme was 
introduced in 2017 to support schools with meeting the 
significant financial challenges facing them through a 
number of different work streams. The Committee is 
periodically consulted on progress. The work plan has 
recently been updated under the new thematic 
approach to corporate transformation. 

This item will enable the Committee to comment on 
the current work plan and consider further ways in 
which the schools’ budget can be supported. 

Education and Children’s  
Services Draft Business 
Plan 2023/24 

The Committee is consulted on the Business Plans for 
the Education and Children’s Services Department on 
an annual basis. These plans need to accompany the 
budget and Corporate Strategy. 
Business Plans show how Corporate Strategy ambition 
will be delivered. 

This item will enable the Committee to consider 
and comment on the Education and Children’s 
Services Business Plan’s relevant to its remit. 
 

Corporate Strategy The new Cabinet has outlined its vision for the next 5 
years and we have consulted with residents, 

This item will enable the Committee to consider the 
strategic priorities of the Council relevant to the 

T
udalen 75



 

businesses, staff and unions to develop a new 
Corporate Strategy and Well-being Objectives.  
Our Corporate Strategy needs to be considered 
alongside the budget and business plans. 
It is important that we integrate strategic and financial 
planning. 

remit of this Scrutiny and how we can ‘join-up 
Services’ to support wider priorities. 

 

T
udalen 76



 

1 
This is plan is updated monthly. 

CABINET/COUNCIL – FORWARD PLAN 

FOR THE PERIOD 23 DECEMBER 2022 TO 22 DECEMBER 2023 
 

Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director  
 
Report Author 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2022/23 UPDATE 
 
 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2022/23 capital 
programme, as at the 31st October 2022. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

CARMARTHENSH
IRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL’S 
ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR 2021/22 
 
 

Under the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2009 we must publish an Annual 
Report on past performance by the end of 
October each year. 
Under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 we are 
required to publish an Annual Report on 
our Well-being Objectives. 
This report meets both these requirements 
in one document. 
 
 

 
 

No Leader of the Council 
 

Chief Executive 
Nicola Evans, 
Business Support 
Manager  
njevans@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 77



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

2 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

COUNCIL TAX 
REDUCTION 
SCHEME 
 
 

The report seeks formal adoption of the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2023/24 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Ann Thomas, 
Revenue Services 
Manager 
 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

COUNCIL’S 
REVENUE 
BUDGET 
MONITORING 
REPORT 
 
 

To provide the Cabinet with an update on 
the latest budgetary position as at 31st 
October 2022, in respect of 2022/23. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

FIVE YEAR 
CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
(COUNCIL FUND) 
– 2023/24 TO 
2027/28 
 
 

To enable the authority to agree a five-
year capital programme 2023/24 to 
2027/28 
  

 

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Chris Moore, 
Director of 
Corporate Services  
cmoore@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

HOUSING 
REVENUE 
ACCOUNT 
BUSINESS PLAN 
2023-2026 
 
 

The HRA Business plan sets out our 
priorities and activities for new and 
existing council homes for the next three 
years. It also sets our capital and revenue 
budgets and confirms rental levels for 
tenants. 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Rachel Davies, 
Strategic Housing 
Delivery Manager  
RaMDavies@carm
arthenshire.gov.uk 

T
udalen 78



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

3 

  
Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 
QUARTER 2 
2022/23(1 JULY 
TO 30 
SEPTEMBER 
2022) 
 
 

Authorities are under a general duty to 
make arrangements to monitor 
performance.  
We need to demonstrate to citizens, 
members and regulators how performance 
is managed, and appropriate interventions 
implemented 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Organisation & 
Workforce 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 
Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
9 Jan 2023 
 

REVENUE 
BUDGET 
STRATEGY 
2023/24 TO 
2025/26 
 
 

To provide the Cabinet with an overview of 
the budget issues and outlook for the 
forthcoming years 
  

 

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
30 Jan 2023 
 

WASTE 
STRATEGY 
 
 

This report covers detailed policies 
implement within the strategic and 
operational functions of service in line with 
the interim (2022/2023) kerbside waste 
changes. Placing into context the 
impending changes following the 2021-
2025 waste strategy showing the planed 
path to improve recycling rates and adopt 
Welsh Government kerbside sort in 
Carmarthenshire. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, 
Environmental 
Services Manager  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 79



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

4 

 

Cabinet 
30 Jan 2023 
 

CWM BUSINESS 
PLAN & 
PROGRESS 
REPORT 
 
 

This report presents the annual business 
plan of CWM Environmental, setting the 
annual actions and objectives and the 
progress the company has made 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, 
Environmental 
Services Manager  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
30 Jan 2023 
 

UK SHARED 
PROSPERITY 
FUND 
GOVERNANCE 
PROPOSAL 
(UKSPF) 
 
 

To provide an update on the continued 
preparatory work for the Shared Prosperity 
Fund and to endorse steps taken to date, 
and proposed, to ensure that the County 
benefits from this new investment 
Programme. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Chief Executive 
Jason Jones (Head 
of Regeneration), 
Head of 
Regeneration  
JaJones@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
30 Jan 2023 
 

ARFOR 2 
APPROVAL 
 
 

To consider and approve delivery of the 
Arfor II programme in Carmarthenshire.  
Arfor is a Welsh Government funding 
Programme with the aim to stimulate and 
grow both the Welsh Language and the 
economy. It will run to March 2025 and 
£11m is available for the 4 counties of 
Camarthenshire, Ceredigion, Gwynedd 
and Ynys Mon. 
 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Chief Executive 
Jason Jones (Head 
of Regeneration), 
Head of 
Regeneration  
JaJones@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

SELF-
EVALUATION 

Self-evaluation is integral to the business 
planning process. ECS has modified its 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 

Director of 
Education & 

T
udalen 80



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

5 

 AND SCHOOL 
DATA 
 
 

approach by triangulating judgements 
from a wider range of perspectives 
  

 

Language 
 

Children 
Aeron Rees, Head 
of Strategy and 
Learner Support  
jarees@carmarthen
shire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

SUPPORT FOR 
CURRICULUM 
DEVELOPMENT 
ACROSS THE 
SCHOOLS IN 
CARMARTHENSH
IRE – 
PARTNERIAETH 
AND THE 
EDUCATION AND 
CHILDREN’S 
SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT. 
 
 

This report provides an overview of the 
support offered to our schools in relation 
to the implementation of the Curriculum for 
Wales, from Partneriaeth and the 
Education and Children’s services 
department. In addition, the report outlines 
the impact of this support and the effective 
practice that is developing within the 
authority. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Director of 
Education & 
Children 
Elin Forsyth, 
Principal Challenge 
Advisor  
EMForsyth@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

ALTERNATIVE 
OUTDOOR 
EDUCATION 
OFFER 
 
 

The purpose of this report is to review 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s current 
Outdoor Education offer and to explore 
options for a re-modelled service within 
existing resources. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Ian Jones, Head of 
Leisure  
IJones@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

CONSERVATION 
AREA 

This report sets out the work being 
undertaken to review ten designated 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 

No Cabinet Member for 
Rural Affairs and 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 

T
udalen 81



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

6 

 APPRAISALS 
 
 

Conservation Areas across the County. It 
identifies the outcome of the review and 
the subsequent consultation exercise 
including on the: 
•A character appraisal; 
•A boundary review and 
•A management plan. 
The report in setting out the above 
identifies the outcome of the public 
consultation exercise and the next steps 
including the processes required to amend 
any of the Conservation Area 
designations. 
 
 

 
 

Planning Policy 
 

Rhodri Griffiths, 
Head of Place and 
Sustainability  
RDGriffiths@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

CORPORATE 
STRATEGY 
 
 

To update our Corporate Strategy and 
Well-being Objectives 
 
  

 

No Leader of the Council 
 

Chief Executive 
Nicola Evans, 
Business Support 
Manager  
njevans@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

HIGHWAYS 
ASSET 
MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 
Maintenance 
Manual 
 
 

The Maintenance Manual is being 
developed as a portfolio of individual 
highway maintenance and management 
policies adopting a risk-based approach 
and according with a national code of 
practice. 
The topic being brought forward covers 
the management of highway drainage. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Richard Waters, 
Highways and 
Transportation 
Services Manager  
RWaters@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 82



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

7 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

HOUSING 
SUPPORT 
PROGRAMME 
(HSP) STRATEGY 
2022-26 
 
 

This strategy sets out our priorities and 
those of our partner agencies for 
homelessness prevention, homelessness 
relief and housing related support services 
over the coming four years (2022-26) to 
support our most vulnerable citizens to live 
as part of their communities. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Christine Harrison, 
Head of Strategic 
Joint 
Commissioning  
Chris.harrison@pe
mbrokeshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

RURAL ESTATES 
 
 

In January 2021, the Welsh Government 
announced regulatory measures to 
address agricultural pollution. These 
regulations are known as The Water 
Resources (Control of Agricultural 
Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. The 
regulations will have a huge impact on the 
majority of the Council’s farms, especially 
the dairy farms, which will involve having 
to upgrade slurry storage facilities to 
accommodate at least five months’ worth 
of slurry. The average capacity of slurry 
stores on Council farms currently stands 
at 2-3 months of storage. 
This report provides an update on the 
current situation regarding the impact of 
the regulations on the Farm Estate and 
the implications following the outcome of 
recent condition surveys carried out on all 
24 farms. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Chief Executive 
Jason Jones (Head 
of Regeneration), 
Head of 
Regeneration  
JaJones@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

PROPOSAL FOR On 4 July 2022, Cabinet established a Cabinet No Cabinet Member for Director of Place & 

T
udalen 83



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

8 

13 Feb 2023 
 

CABINET TO 
CONSIDER THE 
FORMALLY 
SIGNING  OF THE 
EDINBURGH 
DECLARATION 
ON POST-2020 
GLOBAL 
BIODIVERSITY 
FRAMEWORK 
 
 

Cross Party Advisory Panel to support the 
authority’s approach to addressing the 
climate and nature emergencies and the 
adoption of the Edinburgh Declaration. At 
the inaugural meeting of the Advisory 
panel, Members provided unanimous 
support for the Cabinet formally signing 
the declaration. 
 

 
 

Climate Change, 
Decarbonisation and 
Sustainability 
 

Infrastructure 
Rosie Carmichael, 
Rural Conservation 
Manager  
racarmichael@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
13 Feb 2023 
 

TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
POLICY AND 
STRATEGY 2023-
2024 
 
 

That Council formally approves the 
Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy for 2021-22 and 
recommendations therein. That Council 
formally approves the Treasury 
Management Indicators, Prudential 
Indicators, the MRP Statement, the 
Investment Strategy and 
recommendations therein.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  
aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
20 Feb 2023 
 

FIVE YEAR 
CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
(COUNCIL FUND) 
– 2023/24 TO 

To enable the authority to agree a five-
year capital programme 2023/24 to 
2027/28 
  

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 

T
udalen 84



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

9 

2027/28 
 
 

 Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
20 Feb 2023 
 

REVENUE 
BUDGET 
STRATEGY 
2023/24 TO 
2025/26 
 
 

To enable the Authority to set its Revenue 
Budget for the Council Fund and resultant 
Council Tax for 2023/24. 
  

 

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
27 Feb 2023 
 

COUNCIL’S 
REVENUE 
BUDGET 
MONITORING 
REPORT 
 
 

To provide the Cabinet with an update on 
the latest budgetary position as at 31st 
December 2022, in respect of 2022/23. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
27 Feb 2023 
 

TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
AND 
PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATOR 
REPORT 1ST 

To provide members with an update on 
the treasury management activities from 
1st April 2022 to 31st December 2022 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  

T
udalen 85



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

10 

APRIL 2022 TO 
31ST DECEMBER 
2022 
 
 

aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Feb 2023 
 

EMPTY 
PROPERTY 
POLICY 
 
 

TO INTRODUCE THE EMPTY 
PROPERTY POLICY THAT WILL SET 
THE VISION AND THE WORK 
PROGARMME FOR THE COUNCIL IN 
TACKLING EMPTY RESIDENTIAL 
HOMES WITHIN THE COUNTY FOR 
THE NEXT 4 YEARS. THE POLICY ALSO 
SETS OUT THE LOAL CONTEXT AND 
THE IMPORTANCE OF BRINGING 
EMPTY HOMES BACK INTO USE TO 
HELP MEET THE HOUSING NEED IN 
THE COUNTY PARTICULARLY FOR 
LOCAL PEOPLE. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Gareth Williams, 
Team Leader  
GajWilliams@carm
arthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Feb 2023 
 

COMMUNITIES, 
HOMES AND 
REGENERATION 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
TASK AND FINISH 
GROUP REPORT 
– EMERGENCY 
SOCIAL 
HOUSING 
ALLOCATIONS 
POLICY 

To consider the Task and Finish Group’s 
recommendations on the adoption of an 
Emergency Social Housing Allocations 
Policy 
  

 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Chief Executive 
Kevin J Thomas, 
Democratic 
Services Officer  
kjthomas@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 T

udalen 86



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

11 

 
 

Cabinet 
13 Mar 2023 
 

BUSINESS 
RATES – RETAIL, 
LEISURE AND 
HOSPITALITY 
RATES RELIEF 
SCHEME 2023/24 
 
 

To consider the adoption of a rate relief 
scheme being made available to billing 
authorities by Welsh Government for 
2023/24 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Ann Thomas, 
Revenue Services 
Manager 
 

Cabinet 
13 Mar 2023 
 

EQUESTRIAN 
STRATEGY 
 
 

The Carmarthenshire Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2019-2029 
has been produced and published in 
accordance with section 60 of the 
Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) 
Act (2000). 
The ROWIP details Carmarthenshire’s 
plan for the strategic management, 
development, and improvement of the 
County’s Public Rights of Way network up 
until 2029. 
During consultation with the Local Access 
Forum, The Forum identified a need for 
the local authority to commit to producing 
a Carmarthenshire Equestrian Strategy to 
recognise the access opportunities and 
challenges for horse riding and carriage 
driving across the County. 
An Equestrian Strategy to ‘promote and 
develop an accessible network for 
equestrian use’ has therefore been 
published in the Carmarthenshire Rights 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Steve Pilliner, Head 
of Transportation & 
Highways  
SGPilliner@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 87



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

12 

of Way Improvement Plan 2019-2029. 
The report sets out the proposal to adopt 
an Equestrian Strategy for 
Carmarthenshire. 
 
 

Cabinet 
13 Mar 2023 
 

WEST WALES 
ADULT 
ADVOCACY 
STRATEGY 2023 - 
2027 
 
 

THE ADULT ADVOCACY STRATEGY 
SEEKS TO SHAPE THE 
COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS OF 
HDUHB, CARMARTHENSHIRE CC, 
CEREDIGION CC AND 
PEMBROKESHIRE CC IN ORDER TO 
MEET THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES. IT 
SEEKS TO ENSURE THAT GOOD 
QUALITY ADVOCACY IS READILY AND 
EQUITABLY AVAILABLE, IN THE WEST 
WALES REGION. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Health & Social Services 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Christine Harrison, 
Head of Strategic 
Joint 
Commissioning  
Chris.harrison@pe
mbrokeshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Mar 2023 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2022/23 UPDATE 
 
 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2022/23 capital 
programme, as at the 31st December 
2022. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

CARMARTHENSH
IRE’S 
SUSTAINABLE 

To provide Cabinet with an updated 
CSCfL (formerly known as Modernising 
Education Programme (MEP)) as the long-

Cabinet 
27 Mar 2023 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 

Director of 
Education & 
Children 

T
udalen 88



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

13 

COMMUNITIES 
FOR LEARNING 
(CSCfL) 
 
 

term strategy and investment plan for 
schools. 
The plan will be brought forward following 
extensive consultation with stakeholders. 
 

 
 

 Simon Davies, 
Head of Access to 
Education  
sidavies@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Mar 2023 
 

ELECTRIC 
VEHICLE 
CHARGING 
INFRASTRUCTUR
E STRATEGY, 
TWELVE MONTH 
REVIEW 
 
 

The report provides an update on 
progress with the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Infrastructure Strategy. 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Steve Pilliner, Head 
of Transportation & 
Highways  
SGPilliner@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Mar 2023 
 

THE EDUCATION 
AND CHILDREN’S 
SERVICES 
STRATEGY FOR 
SUPPORTING 
OUR SCHOOLS 
AND SPECIALIST 
SETTINGS, 
INCLUDING 
THOSE THAT 
ARE MOST 
CHALLENGED. 
 
 

This report outlines the range of 
differentiated support provided to our 
schools, PRUs and specialist settings 
ensuring that leaders, teachers and 
teaching assistants access the necessary 
support to ensure that all pupils progress 
and thrive. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Director of 
Education & 
Children 
Elin Forsyth, 
Principal Challenge 
Advisor  
EMForsyth@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

TENANT 
RECHARGE 

Occasionally it may be necessary to 
recharge a tenant for work that we have 

Cabinet 
11 Apr 2023 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 

Director of 
Communities 

T
udalen 89



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

14 

 POLICY 
 
 

carried out to the property which was the 
tenant responsibility under the tenancy 
agreement. 
The policy will guide officers when dealing 
with council tenant recharges, ensuring a 
consistent approach. 
 
 

 
 

Homes 
 

Jonathan Morgan, 
Head of Homes & 
Safer Communities  
JMorgan@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
11 Apr 2023 
 

TENANT 
COMPENSATION 
POLICY 
 
 

The report sets out our approach to when 
it may be appropriate to compensate a 
tenant who has suffered loss or 
inconvenience due to service failure. The 
policy will guide officers when dealing with 
council tenants ensuring a consistent 
approach. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Jonathan Morgan, 
Head of Homes & 
Safer Communities  
JMorgan@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
11 Apr 2023 
 

AN EVALUATION 
OF ESTYN 
INSPECTIONS 
ACROSS 
CARMARTHENSH
IRE SCHOOLS, 
PUPIL REFERRAL 
UNITS AND 
SPECIALIST 
SETTINGS. 
 
 

This report provides an evaluation of 
Estyn inspections over the last five years, 
outlining the strengths of our schools, 
PRUs and specialist settings, as well as 
providing an overview of 
recommendations for improvement. In 
addition, the report outlines how the ECS 
department supports schools both pre and 
post Estyn inspections to ensure that all of 
our learners’ progress and thrive. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Director of 
Education & 
Children 
Elin Forsyth, 
Principal Challenge 
Advisor  
EMForsyth@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

CARMARTHENSH
IRE PUBLIC 

The Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on each 

Cabinet 
11 Apr 2023 

No Leader of the Council 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 

T
udalen 90



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

15 

 SERVICES 
BOARD (PSB) 
WELL-BEING 
PLAN 2023-28 
 
 

PSB to develop and publish a county Well-
being Plan. As part of the preparation of 
this Plan, Carmarthenshire PSB has 
undertaken a detailed Well-being 
Assessment.  
The objectives and actions identified as 
part of this plan will focus on areas of 
collective action that the PSB can 
influence by working together and does 
not therefore replicate what is considered 
to be the core business of the individual 
member bodies of the PSB, unless there 
is added value to be gained by the PSB 
working together. 
 
 

 
 

Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
11 Apr 2023 
 

CLEANSING 
SERVICE 
STRATEGIC 
MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 
 
 

To present the outcomes of the review into 
the Council’s street cleaning service and 
make recommendations for future service 
delivery. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, 
Environmental 
Services Manager  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
24 Apr 2023 
 

GRANTS 
AWARDS POLICY 
 
 

In line with the requirement of the Welsh 
Language Standards the Council must 
produce and publish a policy on awarding 
grants (or, where appropriate,  
amend an existing policy) which requires 
you to consider positive or negative effects 
the awarding and implementing of the 
grant could have on: 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 
Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 91



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

16 

(i) opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and  
(ii) treating the Welsh language no less 
favourably than the English language. 
 
 

Cabinet 
24 Apr 2023 
 

TACKLING 
POVERTY 
ACTION PLAN 
 
 

The Council has prepared a tackling 
poverty action plan which incorporates its 
response to the cost of living crisis. The 
plan outlines actions to be taken by a 
range of Council services and steps to 
further our involvement with a range of 
external stakeholders. 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 
Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
24 Apr 2023 
 

DEFENCE 
EMPLOYEE 
RECOGNITION 
SCHEME 
 
 

To approve progression within the 
Defence Employee Recognition Scheme 
(DERS) to Silver Award and to strengthen 
our ongoing commitment to the Armed 
Forces Covenant. In October 2021, 
Cabinet approved the re-signing of the 
Armed Forces Covenant, which pledged a 
commitment to apply for the DERS. The 
DERS encourages employers to support 
those serving (reservists) or who have 
served in the armed forces (veterans) and 
their dependants. It aligns with the Armed 
Forces Covenant which is a pledge to the 
Armed Forces Community and their 
families that they will be given respect and 
fairness in the United Kingdom that they 
serve. The DERS encompasses Bronze, 
Silver, and Gold Awards for employers 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Organisation & 
Workforce 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 
Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 92



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

17 

that pledge, demonstrate or advocate 
support to the Armed Forces Community. 
 

Cabinet 
24 Apr 2023 
 

WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
PROMOTION 
STRATEGY 2023-
28 
 
 

To approve the Welsh Language 
Promotion Strategy for 2023-28, as a part 
of our statutory responsibilities under the 
Welsh Language Measure (Wales) 2011. 
Carmarthenshire County Council leads on 
the preparation of the Promotion Strategy; 
however, we work closely with partners 
across the county to co-design our work to 
support the Language in our communities. 
This is the second promotion strategy and 
there will be an opportunity to reflect on 
the results of the 2021 Census as part of 
our work. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Chief Executive 
Noelwyn Daniel, 
Head of ICT and 
Corporate Policy  
ndaniel@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
22 May 2023 
 

LEISURE, 
CULTURE AND 
OUTDOOR 
RECREATION 
STRATEGY – 
POST 
CONSULTATION 
 
 

The document provides a framework for 
the service to work with key stakeholders 
to deliver a strategically aligned Leisure, 
Culture and Outdoor Recreation Strategy 
for the next 10 years. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Ian Jones, Head of 
Leisure  
IJones@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
17 Jul 2023 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR THE WELSH 
IN EDUCATION 
STRATEGIC 
PLAN (WESP) 

The Carmarthenshire 2022-32 WESP 
became operative on 1.9.22. The Local 
Authority is required to submit an annual 
progress report to Welsh Government. It’s 
deemed pertinent to present this report to  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Education and Welsh 
Language 
 

Director of 
Education & 
Children 
Aeron Rees, Head 
of Strategy and 

T
udalen 93



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

18 

 
 

the Scrutiny process prior to WG 
submission. 
 

Learner Support  
jarees@carmarthen
shire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
4 Sep 2023 
 

ANNUAL 
TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
AND 
PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATOR 
REPORT 2022-
2023 
 
 

To provide members with an update on 
the treasury management activities for 
2022-2023 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  
aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2022/23 UPDATE 
 
 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2022/23 capital 
programme 
  

 

No  
 

 
 
 

 

T
udalen 94



 

Blaengynllun Gwaith y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg, Pobl Ifanc a'r Gymraeg ar gyfer 2022/23 
 

6 Hydref 2022  1 Rhagfyr 2022 22 Rhagfyr 2022 (wedi’i 
ganslo) 

23 Ionawr 2023 16 Mawrth 2023 20 Ebrill 2023 

Sesiwn Ymgysylltu 
ag Ysgolion 
(diweddariad - Ysgol 
Gynradd Brynteg 
bellach yn cymryd 
rhan yn lle Dyffryn y 
Swistir) 
 

Cynllun Cyfiawnder 
Ieuenctid Sir Gaerfyrddin 

Y diweddaraf am y camau a 
gymerwyd/materion a gyfeiriwyd 
(wedi symud i 23/01/23) 

Ymgynghori ynghylch 
Cyllideb Refeniw 
2023/24 - 2025/26  

Adolygiad Ôl-16 - 
gan gynnwys 
Cymwysterau 
Galwedigaethol a'r 
rhai Nad ydynt 
mewn Addysg, 
Cyflogaeth a 
Hyfforddiant 
(NEET) 
 

Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol 
(ADY) 
 

Adroddiad Blynyddol 
y Pwyllgor Craffu - 
Addysg a Phlant 
2021/22 

Adroddiad Blynyddol y 
Cyngor Sir  

Ymgynghori ynghylch Cyllideb 
Refeniw 2023/24 - 2025/26 – 
(wedi symud i 23/01/23) 

Cynllun Drafft yr Adran 
Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant 
2023/24 (symud i 
16.03.23) 

Trawsnewid i 
Wneud Cynnydd 
(TIC), gan gynnwys 
cyllidebau ysgolion. 
 

Rhaglen Cymunedau Dysgu 
Cynaliadwy  
 

Adroddiad Blynyddol 
y Cyngor Sir 
(aildrefnwyd i 
01.12.22) 
 
 

Cefnogaeth i Ddatblygu’r 
Cwricwlwm ar draws yr 
ysgolion yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin – 
Partneriaeth ac Adran 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Plant (wedi symud i 
23/01/23) 

Cynnig Addysg Awyr Agored 
Amgen (i’w ystyried o dan cylch 
gorchwyl y Pwyllgor Craffu 
Cymunedau, Cartrefi ac 
Adfywio) 

 

Cefnogaeth i 
Ddatblygu’r Cwricwlwm 
ar draws yr ysgolion yn 
Sir Gaerfyrddin – 
Partneriaeth ac Adran 
Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant 
 
 

Strategaeth 
Gorfforaethol 
(wedi symud o 
23/01/23) 

Y diweddaraf am y camau a 
gymerwyd/materion a gyfeiriwyd 
 

Blaengynllun Gwaith 
2022/23  
 

Strategaeth Gorfforaethol 
(wedi symud i 23.01.23) 
 

Eitemau ar gyfer y Dyfodol Strategaeth 
Gorfforaethol 
(symud i 16.03.23) 

Cynllun Drafft yr 
Adran Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau 
Plant 2023/24 
(symud o 23.01.23) 

Eitemau ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
 

Eitemau ar gyfer y 
Dyfodol 
 

Eitemau ar gyfer y 
Dyfodol 

 Y diweddaraf am y 
camau a 
gymerwyd/materion a 
gyfeiriwyd (wedi 

Eitemau ar gyfer y 
Dyfodol 
 

 

   Eitemau ar gyfer y 
Dyfodol 
 
 

  

T
udalen 95



 

 

Aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu i graffu ar yr adroddiadau canlynol drwy e-bost 
 

Adroddiad Rheoli 
Perfformiad 
(Chwarter 1)  (wedi 
symud i 01/12/22)   
 

Monitro Cyllideb Ebrill 22 i 
Awst 2022 
 

 Monitro Cyllideb Ebrill 
22 i Hydref 2022 

 Monitro Cyllideb Ebrill 22 i Ragfyr 
2022  
(I'w ddosbarthu y tu allan i broses 
cyfarfod pwyllgor) 
 

Monitro'r Gyllideb 
Refeniw a'r Gyllideb 
Gyfalaf (alldro 
2021/22) 

Adroddiad Rheoli 
Perfformiad (Chwarter 1) 
(wedi symud o 06/10/22)   

 Strategaeth 
Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol 10 
mlynedd –  adroddiad 
wedi’i ohirio a symud i 
2023/24 Blaengynllun 
Gwaith 
 

 Adroddiad Rheoli Perfformiad 
(Chwarter 3) 

Monitro Cyllideb 
Ebrill 22 i Fehefin 
2022  

  Adroddiad Rheoli 
Perfformiad (Chwarter 
2) (wedi symud o 
22/12/22)   

  

Adroddiad Blynyddol 
Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol 

     

 
Adroddiadau ychwanegol / gwybodaeth y gofynnodd y Pwyllgor amdanynt yn ystod 2022/23 (i'w dosbarthu drwy e-bost): 
• Adroddiadau blaenorol a gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor yn ymwneud ag Addysg Ddewisol yn y Cartref – dosbarthwyd ar 13/12/2022. 

 
• Cymhwysedd ar gyfer Prydau Ysgol am ddim - Nodyn gwybodaeth i'w ddosbarthu i'r holl Gynghorwyr Sir i roi diweddariad ar y cynnydd a 

wnaed o ran cyflwyno darpariaeth prydau ysgol am ddim.Ar ben hynny, mae adroddiad diweddaru i'w ddosbarthu i'r Pwyllgor yn nodi sut mae 
mater categoreiddio cymhwysedd ar gyfer prydau ysgol am ddim wedi cael sylw a bydd yn cael ei fesur wrth symud ymlaen. 
 

Adroddiad(au) ychwanegol i'w ddyrannu i'r Flaenraglen Waith (dyddiad(au) i'w gadarnhau): 
• Adolygiad Addysg ôl-COVID – cynnwys yr adroddiad a dyddiad i’w gadarnhau ar 19.01.2023 yn y seswin BGG. 
• Tîm oamgylch y teulu – Os yw’n berthnasol i’r cylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor, cynnwys yr adroddiad a dyddiad i’w gadarnhau ar 19.01.2023 yn y 

seswin BGG. 
• Adroddiad yn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am yr argymhellion gan y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ynghylch y Broses Ymgynghori ar 

Drefniadaeth Ysgolion - cynnwys yr adroddiad a dyddiad i’w gadarnhau ar 19.01.2023 yn y seswin BGG.  

T
udalen 96



 

 
Gweithdai i'w trefnu: 

• Hunanasesiad Gwerthuso a Data Ysgolion – cynhaliwyd ar 18/10/2022. 
• Adolygiad Ôl-16 - gan gynnwys Cymwysterau Galwedigaethol a'r rhai Nad ydynt mewn Addysg, Cyflogaeth a Hyfforddiant (NEET) – wedi 

trefnu ar gyfer 10.02.23 – mae’r dyddiad i’w gadarnhau ar 19.01.2023 yn y seswin BGG. 
 

Sesiynau Datblygu  
• Trosolwg o faes gorchwyl y Pwyllgor Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant yn dilyn cadarnhad o'i Gylch Gorchwyl ac eglurder diwygiedig ar 

rôl/disgwyliadau Aelodau Pwyllgorau Craffu.  cynhaliwyd ar 01/12/2022 
 
Ymweliadau Safle 

• Symudodd yr Awdurdod i strwythur amgen, ar ffurf sesiynau ymgysylltu ag ysgolion ar-lein, i gymryd lle ymweliadau ysgol dros dro yn ystod 
pandemig parhaus Covid-19, er mwyn galluogi'r Pwyllgor i barhau â'i swyddogaeth gwerthuso a gwella ysgolion.  Mae'r Pwyllgor Craffu yn 
gobeithio ailddechrau ei ymweliadau safle yn ystod blwyddyn galendr 2023. 

T
udalen 97



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, POBL IFANC A'R GYMRAEG 
 

DYDD IAU, 1 RHAGFYR 2022  
 
 

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd A.C. Jones (Chair) (Yn y Siambr) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
L. Davies, P. Hughes Griffiths 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn rhithwir):  
S.M. Allen, K.V. Broom, L.M. Davies, B.W. Jones, D. Jones, M.J.A. Lewis, S.L. Rees, 
E. Skinner, M. Thomas  
 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig (Yn y Siambr): 
A. Enoch, V. Kenny  
 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig (Yn rhithwir): 
F. Healey-Benson 
 
Roedd yr Aelodau Cabinet canlynol yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
J. Tremlett, P.M. Hughes 
 
Roedd yr Aelodau Cabinet canlynol yn bresennol (Yn rhithwir): 
G. Davies 
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant 
A. Rees, Pennaeth Strategaeth a Chymorth i Ddysgwyr 
G. Adams, Prif Reolwr y Gwasanaeth Cymorth Ieuenctid 
A. Eynon, Prif Gyfieithydd 
J. Owens, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (Cymryd Cofnodion) 
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol (Yn rhithwir): 
N. Daniel, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau TGCh a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
S. Davies, Pennaeth Mynediad i Addysg 
A Thomas, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Addysg a Chynhwysiant 
J.G. Buck, Swyddog Perfformiad a Gwybodaeth 
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Siambr – Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1SP ac o bell – 2.00 – 3.45yp. 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan D. Elias.  Dywedodd y 
Cadeirydd wrth y Pwyllgor fod angen i'r Cynghorydd S. Rees adael y cyfarfod yn 
gynnar er mwyn cyflawni gwaith arall ar ran y Cyngor.  
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW 
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I UNRHYW EITEM AR YR 
AGENDA. 

Tudalen 99

Eitem Rhif  9



 

 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch buddiannau personol na chwip. 
 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
 

4. CYNLLUN CYFIAWNDER IEUENCTID SIR GAERFYRDDIN 2022/2023 
 
Cafodd Cynllun Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Sir Gâr ar gyfer 2022/23 ei gyflwyno i'r 
Pwyllgor.   
  
Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r trefniadau llywodraethu, arweinyddiaeth a phartneriaeth 
a oedd wedi arwain at ddatblygu'r Cynllun Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid, a nodwyd yn 
Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad, yn unol â gofynion deddfwriaethol Deddf Trosedd ac 
Anhrefn 1998.  
  
Roedd y Cynllun Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yn amlinellu'r Gwasanaeth Cymorth 
Ieuenctid a'r Tîm Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid a ddarparwyd o dan un strwythur rheoli, a 
oedd yn darparu dull cyfannol o ddarparu gwasanaethau cymorth ieuenctid 
ledled Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Tynnwyd sylw'r Pwyllgor at adran 8 o'r Cynllun 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid a oedd yn manylu ar berfformiad y bartneriaeth yn ystod 
2021/22, a hefyd yn nodi'r blaenoriaethau a'r amcanion cynllunio gwelliannau am 
y flwyddyn i ddod, yn unol â'r egwyddorion 'plentyn yn gyntaf' cyffredinol ac ethos 
o welliant parhaus.  
  
Cydnabu'r Pwyllgor waith hanfodol y bartneriaeth wrth geisio lliniaru effaith 
pandemig y coronafeirws er mwyn diogelu'r plant a'r teuluoedd mwyaf agored i 
niwed a chymhleth ar draws y sir.  Yn ogystal, dywedwyd bod sawl grŵp strategol 
wedi'u sefydlu i fynd i'r afael â'r gofynion oedd yn gysylltiedig â lles plant ac 
oedolion agored i niwed. 
  
Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion/sylwadau a godwyd gan y Pwyllgor, fel a ganlyn: 
  
Bu i'r Pwyllgor ganmol ymroddiad ac ymrwymiad parhaus staff y Tîm Cyfiawnder 
Ieuenctid wrth weithio gyda phlant a phobl ifanc yn ystod yr heriau welwyd adeg 
pandemig y coronafeirws. 
  
Eglurwyd i'r Pwyllgor mai cynllun tu allan i'r llys oedd 'system Biwro' y sir, a oedd 
yn cael ei weithredu ar y cyd gan yr Awdurdod a'r Heddlu, ac mai ei fwriad oedd 
sicrhau ymyriadau cynnar fel nad oedd plant a phobl ifanc yn mynd i'r llys. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, eglurwyd i'r aelodau fod y wybodaeth oedd ar ffurf graff 
ar dudalen 19 o'r Cynllun Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid, ynghylch 'math o drosedd', wedi'i 
chrynhoi, ac felly byddai'r wybodaeth yn cael ei hailgyflwyno'n llawn i'r Pwyllgor. 
Rhoddwyd sicrwydd hefyd i'r Pwyllgor y byddai adroddiadau'r dyfodol yn cynnwys 
geirfa gynhwysfawr i egluro'r rhestr lawn o fyrfoddau, a byddai allweddi'n cael eu 
darparu i alluogi darllenwyr i ddehongli'r graffiau'n hwylus.  
  
Gofynnwyd cwestiwn ynghylch yr heriau a ragwelwyd o ran cyflawni'r 
blaenoriaethau a'r amcanion helaeth oedd wedi'u pennu ar gyfer y Tîm 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yn 2022/23. Eglurwyd i'r Pwyllgor fod y blaenoriaethau'n 

Tudalen 100



 

cyd-fynd yn strategol â disgwyliadau cenedlaethol, a'u bod yn unol â'r gofynion o 
ran adrodd am y prif ddangosyddion perfformiad. Pwysleisiwyd bod targedau 
uchelgeisiol wedi eu gosod er mwyn galluogi'r Tîm Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid i wneud 
pob ymdrech i sicrhau newid ystyrlon i blant a phobl ifanc yn y sir. Cyfeiriwyd 
hefyd at yr ymdrechion i hyrwyddo cyfranogi ac ymgysylltu cadarnhaol yn y 
dyfodol ar draws meysydd gwaith Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid, a byddai'r ffocws hwn yn 
cael ei gefnogi a'i gryfhau drwy weithredu strategaeth. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, roedd yn gysur i'r Pwyllgor gael clywed am yr amryw 
ddulliau, a gâi eu gweithredu drwy waith partneriaeth, a oedd yn mynd i'r afael 
ag  ecsbloetio plant o ran gangiau a llinellau cyffuriau, a'r cysylltiadau â chyflenwi 
cyffuriau a thrais difrifol.  
  
Yn dilyn ymholiad mewn perthynas â chyllid ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau, 
roedd Prif Reolwr y Gwasanaeth Cymorth Ieuenctid yn falch o allu dweud y 
byddai'r cyfraniad ariannol i'r Tîm Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yn cynyddu £20k ar gyfer 
2022/23, a byddai dyraniadau grant pellach ar gyfer camau atal ac ymyriadau 
cynnar yn galluogi'r tîm i gynnal strwythur staffio sefydlog.  
  
Cyfeiriwyd at faes blaenoriaeth 8, a oedd yn ymwneud â darparu gwasanaethau 
yn y Gymraeg. Bu i Brif Reolwr y Gwasanaeth Cymorth Ieuenctid fanylu ar y 
mentrau recriwtio a hyfforddi a oedd yn sicrhau bod darparu gwasanaethau yn 
Gymraeg yn rhywbeth oedd yn cael ei gynnal a'i gryfhau lle bo modd.  
  
Cyfeiriwyd at y mesur perfformiad oedd yn ymwneud ag Iechyd Meddwl, lle 
rhoddodd Prif Reolwr y Gwasanaeth Cymorth Ieuenctid wybodaeth gefndirol am 
y dull adrodd a chadarnhau ei bod yn hyderus bod mynediad at y gwasanaethau 
iechyd meddwl wedi bod yn amserol ac yn effeithiol yn ystod y cyfnod adrodd. 
  
Mewn ymateb i bryderon a godwyd gan Aelod, fe wnaeth Prif Reolwr y 
Gwasanaeth Cymorth Ieuenctid egluro i'r Pwyllgor, oherwydd cymhlethdod 
carfan fechan o ail-droseddwyr, y gallai'r cyfartaledd blynyddol amrywio'n 
sylweddol. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod Cynllun Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Sir Gâr 
ar gyfer 2022/23 yn cael ei dderbyn.  
 

5. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN AR GYFER 
2021/22 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried adroddiad blynyddol drafft y Cyngor ar gyfer y cyfnod 
2021/22 a oedd wedi ei lunio i fodloni'r darpariaethau perthnasol yn Neddf 
Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 a Deddf Llywodraeth Leol ac 
Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021.  Roedd yr adroddiad yn nodi'r cynnydd a wnaed o ran 
13 Amcan Llesiant y Cyngor yn erbyn cefndir o amgylchiadau digynsail yn sgil 
pandemig Covid-19, ynghyd â hunanasesiad y Cyngor yn erbyn gofynion 
perfformiad y flwyddyn ariannol flaenorol.  Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor y byddai'r 
Adroddiad Blynyddol drafft yn cael ei ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu canlyniad y 
broses ymgynghori oedd yn ymwneud â gofynion perfformiad a nodwyd yn 
Atodiad 5C. 
  

Tudalen 101



 

Ystyriwyd yr Amcanion Llesiant perthnasol oedd o fewn maes gorchwyl y 
pwyllgor, sef: 
  
AMCAN LLESIANT 1: Helpu i roi'r dechrau gorau mewn bywyd i bob 

plentyn a gwella eu profiadau yn gynnar mewn 
bywyd. 

AMCAN LLESIANT 2: Helpu plant i ddilyn ffyrdd iach o fyw. 

AMCAN LLESIANT 3: Cefnogi a gwella cynnydd, cyflawniad, a deilliannau 
i'r holl ddysgwyr. 

AMCAN LLESIANT 4: Trechu tlodi drwy wneud popeth o fewn ein gallu i'w 
atal, gan helpu pobl i gael gwaith a gwella 
bywydau'r rheiny sy'n byw mewn tlodi. 

AMCAN LLESIANT 12: Hyrwyddo'r Iaith Gymraeg a Diwylliant Cymru. 
  
Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion/sylwadau a godwyd gan y Pwyllgor, fel a ganlyn:- 
  
Mynegwyd pryder y gallai ffocws yr Awdurdod ar hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg; maes 
oedd eisoes yn perfformio'n dda, roi pwysau gormodol ar blant a'u teuluoedd 
mewn cyfnod o ansicrwydd yng nghyd-destun gofynion y flwyddyn academaidd 
oedd i ddod, o ystyried effaith y pandemig, gweithredu'r cwricwlwm newydd, a'r 
prinder adnoddau. Eglurodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a'r Gymraeg fod yr 
agenda ar gyfer hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg wedi ei gosod ar lefel genedlaethol drwy 
bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch y wybodaeth ar dudalen 87 o'r adroddiad, 
cadarnhawyd byddai'r geiriad yn cael ei adolygu oherwydd, er bo'r duedd 
hirdymor wedi gostwng, roedd y ffigwr ar gyfer 2021/22 yn gynnydd ar y flwyddyn 
flaenorol.  
  
Cyfeiriwyd at y ffaith bod arian grant yr UE yn dod i ben a gofynnwyd am 
ddiweddariad am y ffrydiau cyllid eraill ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid megis 
Cam Nesa, Cynnydd ac ymyriadau arddull NEET.  Cadarnhawyd i'r Pwyllgor fod 
y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin wedi dod yn lle arian grant yr UE, a'r disgwyl oedd y 
byddai oddeutu £38m yn dod i law Sir Gaerfyrddin i'w ddosbarthu i'r mannau yr 
oedd ei angen. Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, dywedodd Pennaeth Strategaeth a 
Chymorth i Ddysgwyr y gellid cael gafael ar ffigyrau er mwyn cymharu lefel arian 
grant yr UE â lefel arian y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin. 
  
Holodd Aelod pa gymorth oedd ar gael i ddiwallu anghenion y nifer cynyddol o 
blant oedd yn cael diagnosis o awtistiaeth, y cyfeirid ato yn Asesiad Llesiant 1. 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant at heriau diwallu 
anghenion plant ag anghenion dysgu ychwanegol yng nghyd-destun y 
cyfyngiadau ariannol. Fodd bynnag, roedd buddsoddiad yn cael ei wneud i 
ddarparu amgylchedd diogel ar ffurf unedau arbenigol a gwasanaethau effeithiol. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch yr ystadegau gordewdra yn Amcan Llesiant 2 
yr adroddiad, cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant fod 
ffigyrau mwy diweddar yn ddisgwyliedig. Roedd yn cael ei gydnabod fod y 

Tudalen 102



 

pandemig wedi amharu rhywfaint ar y gwelliannau wnaed yn y maes hwn dros y 
blynyddoedd diwethaf, ac felly bernid bod iechyd a llesiant plant yn brif 
flaenoriaeth yn natblygiad strategaeth gorfforaethol yr Awdurdod.  
  
Gofynnwyd am ddiweddariad ar adolygiad y grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen o 
ddyddiadau derbyn disgyblion i ysgolion ac ystodau oedran ar draws y sir.  
Cafodd y Pwyllgor wybod fod y mater wedi cael ei drafod yn ddiweddar yn y cam  
cyn-gabinet, lle cytunwyd byddai proses ymgynghori gynhwysfawr yn dechrau yn 
y flwyddyn newydd, a fyddai'n cynnwys argymhellion y grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen.  
Nodwyd na fyddai unrhyw ddiwygiadau i'r polisi derbyniadau yn dod i rym tan fis 
Medi 2024 man cynharaf.  
  
Cyfeiriwyd at gyflwyno prydau ysgol am ddim yng Nghymru yn ddiweddar a 
mynegwyd pryderon na fyddai rhieni/gwarcheidwaid yn gwneud cais bellach am 
brydau ysgol am ddim, a fyddai'n cael effaith ar lefel y cyllid Grant Datblygu 
Disgyblion (PDG) y gallai'r ysgol ei gael. Cyfaddefodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant fod y PDG yn fesur pwysig i bob ysgol ledled Cymru er 
mwyn cefnogi plant agored i niwed, a rhoddwyd sicrwydd fod sylwadau wedi eu 
cyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru ynghylch hynny. Rhoddwyd gwybod hefyd i'r 
aelodau am y gwaith parhaus o fewn yr Awdurdod i daclo tlodi yn y system 
addysg, a byddai rhagor o wybodaeth am hyn ar gael maes o law.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL argymell i'r Cabinet fod y fersiwn ddrafft 
o Adroddiad Blynyddol y Cyngor am 2021/22 yn cael ei gymeradwyo.  
 

6. EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno'r adroddiad craffu canlynol: 
  

• Cefnogaeth i ddatblygu'r cwricwlwm ar draws yr ysgolion yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi'r eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno'r 
adroddiad. 
 

7. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 
 
Adolygodd y Pwyllgor y rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w hystyried 
yn ei gyfarfod nesaf i'w gynnal ar 23 Ionawr 2023, a oedd wedi deillio o 
Flaengynllun Gwaith y Pwyllgor am 2022/2023.  Pwysleisiwyd gan y Cadeirydd 
fod y Blaengynllun Gwaith yn ddogfen hyblyg y gellid ei diweddaru yn ôl y gofyn 
trwy gydol y flwyddyn wrth i wybodaeth newydd ddod i'r amlwg.  O ganlyniad, 
byddai sesiwn arall i gynllunio'r Blaengynllun Gwaith yn cael ei threfnu faes o law 
i adolygu blaenoriaethau'r Pwyllgor ar gyfer 2022/23, yn unol â Blaengynllun 
Gwaith y Cabinet. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL 
  
7.1 Nodi'r rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w hystyried yn 

y cyfarfod nesaf ar 23 Ionawr 2023. 
  

7.2 Trefnu Sesiwn Cynllunio Blaengynllun Gwaith yn Neuadd y Sir, 

Tudalen 103



 

maes o law, i adolygu blaenoriaethau'r Pwyllgor, yn unol â 
Blaengynllun Gwaith y Cabinet.  

  
 

8. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 
GYNHALIWYD AR 06 HYDREF 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi bod cofnodion cyfarfod y 
Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 6 Hydref 2022 yn gofnod cywir.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 104


	Agenda
	4 CWRICWLWM I GYMRU A CHYMORTH A DDARPERIR I YSGOLION
	Adroddiad

	5 YMGYNGHORI YNGHYLCH STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2023/24 TAN 2025/26
	Atodiad A
	1.	Introduction
	1.1.	Cabinet in October 2022 received a report on the Revenue Budget Outlook for 2023/24 to 2025/26 which appraised Members of the financial outlook and the proposals for taking forward the budget preparation.
	1.2.	This report provides Members with the current view of the Revenue Budget for 2023/24 together with indicative figures for the 2024/25 and 2025/26 financial years. The report is based on officers’ projections of spending requirements and takes account of the provisional settlement issued by Welsh Government on 14th December 2022.
	1.3.	Whilst significant work has already been undertaken in preparing the budget, this represents an initial position statement which will be updated over the coming months as the budget is further developed, council members are engaged and public consultation takes place. The final settlement is due to be received from Welsh Government on 7th   March 2023.
	1.4.	The report is broken down into six parts:

	2.	Funding projections/provisional settlement
	2.1.	The provisional settlement was announced on Wednesday 14th December 2022. Provisional figures for individual Local Authorities were provided for 2023/24, with indicative figures for 2024/25.
	2.2.	The Westminster Autumn Statement announced in November 2022 included a significant Barnett consequential for Welsh Government, reported at £1.2 billion over two years. This was primarily made up of increased funding for Education, Health and Social Care, and changes to business rates, all of which are devolved functions.
	2.3.	The main points of the Provisional Settlement 2023/24 on an all Wales basis are as follows:
	2.3.1.	Local government revenue funding for 2023/24 set at £5.514 billion, an increase of 8.0% (£403 million) compared to 2022/23. Like for like, the increase is 7.9% on an all-Wales basis.
	2.3.2.	The minister’s letter accompanying the settlement highlights that the increase includes funding to meet the Foundation Living Wage, as well as passporting the Education consequential form the UK Autumn Statement.
	2.3.3.	Whilst this is welcome, the inflationary pressures far exceed the funding provided. In particular, no additional funding has been provided to meet the inherent budget shortfall going forward as a result of the 2022 pay awards.
	2.3.4.	There is no funding floor, meaning a wide variation between individual Local Authorities, ranging from +9.3% (Monmouthshire) to +6.5% (Blaenau Gwent). These variances are driven by updates to key datasets which influence the funding allocation, such as the number of Universal Claimants and Free School Meal Pupils in particular areas.

	2.4.	The Settlement figures for Carmarthenshire are:
	2.4.1.	After adjustments for WG identified transfers, the increase in the provisional settlement is 8.5% (£26.432 million). The Aggregate External Finance (AEF) therefore increases to £338.017 million in 2023/24.
	This settlement is significantly above the indicative figure of a 3.4% increase and provides some £15.5m more than our original assumption, however Welsh Government themselves recognise that even this increased figure will not be enough to meet inflationary pressures facing councils and difficult decisions will need to be made. The level of inflationary cost increases is on a scale not seen for several decades, as discussed in detail later in this report.
	We have set our Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) assumptions for 2023 and beyond to accommodate an easing of inflation versus current rates. Whilst the Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecasts a sharp reduction in CPI over the next 12 months – we have followed this pattern, albeit at a higher level – this is because the OBR forecast includes in particular the impact of energy and food costs, which our budget accommodates as separate cost pressures. A key assumption is that across our workforce, pay awards track the prevailing inflation rate over the medium term. The financial model forecasts a requirement for £20m savings over the three year MTFP period.
	Details of the many Welsh Government Service Specific Grants were provided alongside the provisional settlement on 14 December 2022 at an all-Wales level. For 2023/24, as has been standard over several years, most remain at a broadly similar level (cash value) to previous years, which will in reality reduce outputs. With the level of general inflation as well as pay awards at a much higher level, the impact of this next year will be significant.


	2.5.	There are however some important updates to specific grants:
	-	There is new funding of £40m all-Wales to provide continued support to Ukrainians seeking refuge in Wales. This funding will be critical to migitate any unfunded pressure on Local Authority budgets, meaning that the £1m pressure recognised in the October report can now be released.
	-	WG has provided additional £5.5m funding to flatline the Recruit Recover Retain Standards (RRRS), instead of the planned reduction. This will enable schools to continue catchup/recovery activities.
	-	The Additional Learning Needs Transformation grant has nearly doubled from £6.6 million to £12 million across Wales. This increase is estimated to to contibute c. £300k-400k to Carmarthenshire.
	-	The Pupil Development Grant has been increased by a reported £9m across Wales, which is estimated at c. £500k-600k to Carmarthenshire
	As with last year, there are a number of grant changes referred to in the text to the main WG budget narrative, for which the values do not appear to be reflected in the Local Government provisional grant tables – it is assumed that they are due to be updated for the final settlement.

	3.	Budget requirement 2023/24
	3.1.	Current Years performance (2022/23)
	3.1.1.	As the Authority’s core spending requirement remains constant year on year, a review of current year’s performance is important in identifying whether there are any underlying problems within the base budget
	3.1.2.	The current projection for the Revenue Outturn for 2022/23 (based on the October 2022 monitoring) is as follows
	The main reasons for the departmental variances are as follows:
	o	Chief Executive’s Department: underspends on member pay and travelling, registrars and vacant posts across the department, offset by People Management overspends
	o	Education and Children’s Services: Significant overspends in children’s services due to increased demand and agency costs, overspends in ALN budgets and School Meals Service, offset by additional grants in Early Years non-maintained provision.
	o	Communities Department: underspends in Older Peoples and Physical Disabilities budgets are offset by overspends in Learning Disabilities and Mental Health divisions. Additionally, Leisure income levels have been gradually returning to pre-pandemic levels, however this creates an in-year overspend. It should also be noted that without the sectoral staffing shortages in social care, the overspend could be significantly higher.
	o	Corporate Services: there are underspends on pre-Local Government Reorganisation pension costs, and Council Tax Reduction, partially offset by an overspend in Rent Allowances.
	o	Environment Department: Overspends in waste services, school transport and reduced car park usage post-pandemic, offset by vacant posts and reduced property maintenance activity due to contractor capacity.
	At this point the Authority is currently forecasting an overspend of £3.5 million which will need to be met from general balances. It is imperative that the structural pay issue causing this is dealt with in next year’s budget as this is not a sustainable financial position.

	3.2.	Validation
	3.2.1.	Validation reflects the changes in expenditure requirements to deliver the current level of services in future years. Primarily this is inflation, but also includes some service specific changes. Some areas of inflation are currently at rates that have not been seen in decades and present risks to our budget. The key validation factors are as follows:
	3.2.2.	With the exception of pay, the largest change to the council’s budget is the sharp increase in energy and fuel costs. As with large parts of the public sector, our gas and electricity needs are procured by Crown Commercial Services, who aggregate their client’s requirements to secure prices in the year ahead. Whilst this paid handsome dividends for our 2022/23 energy needs, the wholesale energy market has been at unprecedented levels, largely driven by the war in Ukraine.  Carmarthenshire has set a two year purchasing strategy, with around three quarters of our energy needs already secured for 2023/24 and half for 2024/25. Based on the latest figures from Crown Commercial Services, we will need to add £9.5m to energy budgets for 2023/24, however there is expected to be a 10% reduction for 2024/25 which is built into our calculations.
	3.2.3.	The cost of Road Transport Fuel has also increased rapidly over the last year. This affects both the council’s own fleet, for which a 50% price increase has been added to budgets, as well as third party run services such as school transport, for which an explicit budget pressure is included within Appendix B.
	3.2.4.	The Council’s 2022/23 budget was set on the basis of a 4% pay award for both NJC staff (the largest share of our payroll by value and staff numbers) and Teachers. Against this:
	3.2.5.	The NJC award has been agreed at a flat value of £1,925 across all grades, which equates to a 7.1% increase when applied to our workforce. The unbudgeted 3.1% “catchup” must be built into the budget calculations for 2023/24
	3.2.6.	The independent pay review body’s recommendation of a 5% increase for all Teachers has been accepted by Welsh Government, but at this point Unions are balloting for strike action, demanding an uplift to 12%. Our draft budget includes the 1% “catchup” to 5%, with a recognition that any extra above this would be unfunded and represent an explicit significant risk. Every 1% is worth approximately £1m.
	3.2.7.	The previous MTFP planning assumptions include future annual pay awards of 2.5% for all staff. This was updated to 5% for 2023/24 in the budget outlook paper to reflect the higher inflation combined with the level of industrial action across both the public and private sector currently. Looking beyond this, the picture is highly uncertain, therefore our assumption is that pay growth mirrors inflation.
	The impact of nationally set pay awards adds c. £19m to the estimated budget requirement for 2023/24, and a total of £33m over the 3 year planning period.
	3.2.8.	Against these extraordinary increases, we are able to offset three separate cost savings which partially mitigate the scale of the increase required:
		Within the Autumn Statement, the Chancellor confirmed the removal of the Health and Social Care Levy. As the 2022-23 allowed for an increase of £2m across council employed staff and a further £500k for commissioned care, these can now be reversed.
		Staffing budgets have historically been set at the “top of payscales” – this means for individual jobs, the budget provides for the maximum pay point an individual employee could reach in that role. Whilst prudent budgeting, this leads naturally to an inherent underspend due to normal levels of staff turnover, internal promotions etc. By budgeting more precisely according to the exact makeup of the current workforce, we are able to reduce staffing budgets by an estimated £2.5m. This would apply to all departments, with the exception of delegated school budgets, as they are governed by the fair funding formula.
		Strong investment returns and prudent stewardship of the Dyfed Pension Fund over many years has resulted in a funding surplus, confirmed by the fund’s independent actuaries following the most recent Triennial valuation of the Dyfed Pension Fund which has been carried out over the last year. As a consequence, Carmarthenshire is able to reduce our Employers contribution rate by 1.8%, which provides a saving of £2.8m. The final valuation results will be notified to Carmarthenshire before the end of the Financial Year.
	These three measures, taken together, are worth nearly £8m, and without which, the budget reductions requirement and/or council tax increase would have been considerably more challenging.

	3.2.9.	We understand from the Fire Authority that their indicative budget assumed a levy increase of 13%. Since this was agreed, Welsh Government has indicated that Fire Authorities will be required to meet the ongoing annual costs of the emergency service network, the share of which we estimate and anticipate will add £150k to Carmarthenshire and is shown in the pressures appendix for reference. This is yet to be confirmed by the Fire Authority in a formal meeting.
	3.2.10.	As a result of these factors, validation adds over £30 million to the current year’s budget.

	3.3.	Cost Reduction Programme
	In anticipation of the settlement challenges, significant work to review service efficiencies/rationalisation proposals has been undertaken.
	3.3.1.	The savings targets set for each financial year are as follows:
	3.3.2.	Accordingly, departments have developed a range of proposals, and these efficiencies are included in Appendix A of this report.
		The efficiency proposals are categorised as follows:
	Managerial – Efficiencies that result in no perceivable change to the overall level of service delivery.
	Policy – Efficiency or service rationalisation proposals that will directly affect service delivery.
	(Detail at Appendix A)

	.
	3.3.3.	More work will need to be undertaken to further develop these efficiencies.

	3.4.	New Expenditure Pressures and contingency
	3.4.1.	New expenditure pressures are the combinations of additional cost to meet existing service needs e.g. increased client base/greater service take up and the costs of meeting change in service provision e.g. policy changes.
	3.4.2.	The original budget outlook report included £5.5 million per annum to meet growth pressures.
	As with recent years, a much higher value of initial growth bids were received from departments, totalling £17 million. Based on an evaluation of the value and unavoidable nature of pressures submitted as well as additional funding identified through grants as explained in paragraph 2.5 above. Initial indications that many of the submissions are genuinely unavoidable and have already been constrained where practical. At this stage in the budget development, and pending further analysis to be undertaken by Directors, an indicative sum of £12 million been allocated across departments (Appendix B).
	This budget round, social care pressures in particular have been at a very high level:
	o	the Foundation Living Wage, which impacts commissioned social care delivery, has been increased to £10.90, a 10% uplift.
	o	As well as demographic growth pressures for older people’s budgets, this year’s bid recognises the demographic increase in adults living with learning disabilities, which has seen a significant overspend in the current year.
	o	There are significant and unavoidable increases to energy and food costs incurred by residential care providers.
	Last year’s budget provided part year increased funding to support changes to the waste collection methodology – required to achieve increasingly challenging statutory Welsh Government recycling targets. This budget completes this with a further £0.8m, which will also contribute towards the decarbonisation agenda.
	The Education and Childrens department bids include areas of acute overspend in the current year such as ALN and Inclusion services, and pressures on children’s services.
	3.4.3	In total, pressures funding adds £12 million to the budget, including an unallocated sum of £250k. The detail is provided at Appendix B.
	3.4.4	Last year’s budget included an explicit contingency budget of £3.5 m, of which £0.5m was ringfenced for social care. This was to meet increased costs or lost income following the cessation of the WG hardship scheme which came to an end in March 2022.
	Of the £3m corporate contingency, £200k has been allocated to school transport costs, with additional allocations likely to be needed to cover a range of budgetary issues such as sustained reduction in car park usage and PPE purchase and storage. As this requirement is much lower than what was feared, and given the scale of the budget gap, it is proposed that £1.5m can be released.

	3.5.	Schools Delegated Budgets
	3.5.1	Over recent years, our MTFP has provided in full for known pressures to school budgets including inflationary costs and pay awards, without requiring any budget reduction proposals. School balances have also benefitted from additional grant funding provided by Welsh Government, with aggregate balances in March 2022 totalling £15.2m.
	In 2022/23 delegated school budgets represent more than 30% of the authority’s net revenue budget. Given the scale of the financial challenge this year, it is impossible to maintain this protection without significantly impacting other council services. This budget therefore includes a £2.7m saving applied, which is consistent with the level of savings required of other areas of council services.
	Members should also note that as outlined in paragraph 2.5 above, there are increases to the RRRS grant (which was not expected to continue at the same level), ALN and PDG grants. These will all help to support education funding over the year ahead.
	Immediately following the provisional settlement publication, there were calls to ensure that the additional Education Barnett consequential funding was indeed spent on Education. This draft budget meets and exceeds that expectation.

	3.6.	Internal Funding
	3.6.1.	Generally speaking, whilst the use of reserves to support annual budgets should not be summarily discounted, it must be treated with caution. Funding on-going expenditure from such funds merely defers and compounds difficult financial problems to the following year. One-off items of expenditure within any budget proposal lend themselves better for such funding support.
	3.6.2.	In deliberating this point however, members must bear in mind any inherent risks that may be built into the budget strategy. These include:
	3.6.3.	The following table summarises the main categories of reserves held by the Authority.
	School Reserves
		Schools have delegated responsibility for the management of their own finances.   The level of reserves held by an individual school at any point in time will depend on a number of factors including the level of contingency fund that the school governing body considers appropriate, and the particular plans each school has for expenditure. Officers have yet to be informed of any transfers to/from these reserves by individual schools for future years.
		Legislation allows schools to carry forward reserves from one financial period to another.  The School Funding (Wales) Regulations 2010 requires schools to limit their accumulated reserves at year end to £50,000 for Primary Schools and £100,000 for Secondary and Special Schools or 5% of their budget dependent on what is greater. School Improvement officers are currently working with schools to ensure they comply with the guidance. As at 31st March 2022, 17 primary, 2 secondary and 1 special schools were in deficit.

	3.6.4.	General Reserves
		In the changeable and challenging environment currently facing Local Government the Authority is committed to maintaining a reasonable level of General reserves or Balances.   Whilst there is no prescribed minimum level for Balances, Council has previously deemed 3% of net expenditure as being a prudent level, which has been accepted by our Auditors as being reasonable
		The overall level of balances is taken into consideration each year when the annual budget is set and has on occasions been utilised to augment expenditure/reduce council tax. The 2023/24 budget was set on the basis of no transfers from the General Reserves. Based upon the October Budget monitoring (outlined in paragraph 3.1.2 above) there could be a draw on General Reserves of £3.5m and a fall of £7.4 m in school balances at the end of the current financial year.
		Given the ongoing impact of the pandemic response on our budgets and the uncertainty of continued WG support into next year, it is deemed imprudent at this stage to assume any further support for future years budgets from the current General Reserves.

	3.6.5.	Earmarked Reserves
		The Authority holds earmarked reserves which have been set up to finance the delivery of specific projects, or in protecting the authority against future liabilities or issues.   The reserves can be summarised as follows:
		As can be seen from the table above the level of earmarked reserves fluctuates greatly year on year, and whilst the level in each fund is not an exact science it is based on an informed estimate and past experience of the likely call on the authority in future years in line with the intended purpose of each reserve. Great care must therefore be taken when considering utilising such funds for purposes other than those which they were created as this could lead to the authority being faced with substantial unfunded liabilities in the future
		The budget proposals therefore assume nil contribution from reserves in support of the revenue budget in 2023/24 and a further analysis of the reserves held will be undertaken over the coming months with any further proposed utilisation being considered at the budget finalisation stage.
		Taking account of the proposals within this report, the Director of Corporate Services confirms that overall the estimated level of financial reserves (as indicated above) is adequate for the financial year 2023/24, with the General Reserves being at the appropriate level in line with guidelines and good practice, but is also very conscious of the significant risks highlighted in paragraph 3.6.2 of this Budget Strategy.
		The Director is also very conscious of the ongoing commitment to capital projects and of the demand on future services and therefore feels the reserves will need to be monitored closely going forward.



	4.	Impact on the authority’s budget Strategy
	The table below provides an updated position on the current financial outlook taking account of the provisional settlement and also other recent validation changes.
	4.1.	The Current Financial Outlook (updated for the Provisional Settlement) is set out in the table below:
	1.	Includes effect of reductions to pay budgets outlined in paragraph 3.2.8

	4.2.	The total of budget reductions now required for 2023/24 is £9.4m and for the 3 year period are estimated at £20m.
	4.3.	The 2023/24 budget contains £716k which is as yet unallocated, which will allow members scope to consider additional information forthcoming in respect of:
	4.3.1.	Responses to the consultation process
	4.3.2.	Clarification of specific grants – including the inflationary impact of reduced outputs
	4.3.3.	Further growth pressures not currently addressed
	4.3.4.	Changes in assumptions on inflation and pay offers
	4.3.5.	Changes arising from the final settlement


	5.	Consultation
	Budget consultation has been planned for the coming month and a summary of the individual approaches are as follows:
	5.1.	Members seminars. (16-20 January 2023)
	5.2.	The public consultation was launched on 21 December 2022 and will run until 29 January 2023
	5.3.	Town & Community Councils meeting on 19 January 2023
	5.4.	Commercial ratepayers consultation in January 2023
	5.5.	Consultation with Scrutiny Committees  23-30 January 2023.
	5.6.	Consultation with the Schools Budget Forum on 11 January 2023
	5.7.	Trade Union Consultation meeting on 18 January 2023

	6.	Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
	6.1.	In considering the budget proposals, members need to take into consideration the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Act requires that we must carry out sustainable development, improving the economic, social environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.
	‘… the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs’
	6.2.	In doing so, we must demonstrate the following 5 ways of working:
		Looking at the long-term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations to meet their own needs
		Understanding the root causes of the issues to prevent them recurring
		Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being goals and objectives of other services and partners
		Collaboration – Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions
		Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them
	6.3.	Carmarthenshire’s Well Being objectives were updated in April 2021:
	Start Well
	1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life experiences
	2. Help children live healthy lifestyles
	Live Well
	3. Support and improve progress, achievement, and outcomes for all learners
	4. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work and improve the lives of those living in poverty
	5. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county
	6. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes
	7. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)
	8. Support community cohesion, resilience and safety
	Age Well
	9. Support older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence in their later years
	In a Healthy and Safe & Prosperous Environment
	10. Look after the environment now and for the future
	11. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity
	12. Promote Welsh Language and Culture
	Corporate governance
	13. Better Governance and use of Resources

	7.	CONCLUSION
	7.1.	Currently the budget proposals assume the full delivery of all of the  savings proposals submitted.
	7.2.	Work needs to be undertaken to further develop the cost reductions for years 2024/25 and 2025/26 to be able to maintain the current Budget Strategy and level of council tax. Departments will be working over the forthcoming year to refine these savings.
	7.3.	It is recognised the critical importance of minimising the Council Tax increase for our residents during this cost of living crisis, whilst recognising the requirement to set a legally balanced budget in a time of economic turmoil.
	7.4.	Given the current risks around this Budget Strategy and the ongoing inflationary backdrop, the Council Tax increase next year has been increased to 7%, seeking to mitigate reductions to critical services valued by our residents.  In years 2 and 3, the financial picture remains uncertain, and as such we have modelled indicative Council Tax increases of 4% and 3% purely for planning purposes, seeking to strike a balance with budget reductions. This partially alleviates the scale of the reductions proposals which the council needs to consider over future years of the Medium Term Financial Plan.
	7.5.	Over the coming weeks and part of the refining of the Medium Term Financial Plan where the Authority gets further clarification on costs and grant funding and feedback on the consultation, the Authority will aim to limit the Council Tax increase as far as possible.

	8.	RECOMMENDATION
	8.1.	That Cabinet:
	8.1.1.	Note the contents of the report and approve the three year Budget Strategy 2023/24 – 2025/26. This strategy will be used to support the budget consultation and form the basis of the final budget proposals.
	8.1.2.	Note the budget reductions/savings proposals in Appendix A, which will be considered as part of the consultation.
	8.1.3.	Note the unallocated sum of £716k in the current strategy, which will be given further consideration at the completion of the consultation as noted in paragraph 4.3.



	Atodiad A(i)
	Appendix A(ii)
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C

	6 EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU
	Adroddiad

	7 DIWEDDARIAD AR GAMAU GWEITHREDU Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
	Adroddiad

	8 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	9 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 01 RHAGFYR 2022



